KaShuoi

Ka Shui International Holdings lelted

LI
E

HRIERE RN

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with Limited Liability
MBS HE3EMMIMWAERL B

Stock Code B&D1LHE - 822

i
-
|

'

o
\
.

= fn iR B 5 4 2l

Profe

nal Services

Come from

—— —

Continuous Innovation « &




CONTENTS
H &%

19

23

33

39

Corporate Information Consolidated Financial Statements

NAEEH REMBEHR

Financial Highlights 41  Consolidated Income Statement

M2 maEmk

Key Information for Shareholders 42  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REFZER matElER

Chairman’s Statement 43 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
IEHRE e BRI R

Management Discussion and Analysis 45  Statement of Financial Position

EIRE R R AT B ISR R

Directors and Senior Management 46  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EELaREBAER meaEmgEx

Directors’ Report 47  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EEgWmE FAaRERER

Corporate Governance Report 48  Notes to the Financial Statements
PERERBE B T R M =

Independent Auditor’s Report 132 Financial Summary

B LB RS

MBHME




CORPORATE INFORMATION

NRIE M

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)

Dr. Keung Wing Ching (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Andrew Look

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Dr. Keung Wing Ching
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED
ACCOUNTANT
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff Bss, Jp

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Andrew Look

Dr. Keung Wing Ching

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, Jp

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Andrew Look

Dr. Keung Wing Ching

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 32 i B B 45 i B R A 7

Annual Report 2012 - ZZ——4

s

BITES

FRBERE(ZE)
EKEBLT (B FERTHAAE)
EmKBERE

BREE XL

BUFHITES
RRIZ 5t Hopes, A P+

& & B 18 t-8BS, MH, A o+
PR & o

BER L AL

RRERAE
ZXIEME
RIES &4

ARMEREER G
RiES %k

EVEES
k%2 o &

TR B 5 Hopes, A P+

[ 2 B 18 tBs, MH, A Féh+
PEFR ST A&

REZES
FRRIRU 5t HeBBS, A Tai+

& £ B 18 t8BS, MH, A T+
A%

P 3 % A

EKIEEL

FMEES
FRRIRU S HoBes, A T i+

= {& B 18§ tBBS, MH, A P+
A% &

P 3 % A

EKIEEL



CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CUR S

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover EHEE 1,568,958 1,191,698
Net profit attributable to equity EaEE ARG 125,894 62,820
holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZF CGEW) 14.16 7.09
Total dividends per share (HK cents) FRRARE (B 9.90 4.96
Interim dividend paid per share (HK cents) B Z R HARR B GBL) 1.60 0.66
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) BRRERBRE B 8.30 4.30
Dividend payout ratio B b & 70.0% 70.2%
Turnover (HK$million) Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Turnover percentage by business segments

MBEHME (E)
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present you the audited
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

2012 was a fruitful year for the Group as turnover and net profit
had both attained a record high performance. Notwithstanding the
uncertain global economic environment, the Group’s turnover has
recorded a significant growth of 31.7% to HK$1,568,958,000 (2011:
HK$1,191,698,000) and profit attributable to owners of the Company
has also reached HK$125,894,000 (2011: HK$62,820,000), representing
a substantial increase of 100.4% over the previous year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TRE®mE (&

Following the growing popularity of the Ultrabook in the notebook
computer market because of its ultra slim and light weight features, the
Group has benefited from this change in market trend and achieved a
remarkable sales growth of 75.5% in its magnesium alloy die casting
business segment during the year under review. This business segment
has become a major sales growth driver for the Group in 2012,
contributing to 32.1% of the Group’s overall turnover. In becoming the
main stream of personal computer, we expect the penetration rate of the
Ultrabook to rise persistently in the market for the next few years and
as a result, the demand for magnesium alloy metal casings will grow at
a fast pace. As a leading magnesium alloy die casting manufacturer, the
Group is set to benefit from this fast rising industry trend. Apart from
serving one of the world’s largest makers of personal computers already,
the Group has also successfully expanded its customer base to other
branded notebook computer manufacturers. This underpins the Group’s
confidence in achieving a rapid growth in production capacity for our
magnesium alloy business segment in 2013. With our strong research
and development capabilities in metal notebook computer casings, the
Group will strengthen its leading position in the industry through close
cooperation with all the top brands’ notebook computer manufacturers,
with an aim to enhance its market share and earnings.

In addition to its magnesium alloy die casting business, the Group's
plastic injection moulding business had also recorded a boosting sales
growth of 84.4% during the year of 2012. This was resulted from the
continuous increase in the shipment of smartphone, which led to a
persistent rise in the demand for plastic protective cases. It is expected
that this business segment will remain as one of the strong growth
drivers for the Group in the forthcoming future. Smartphone shipment
volume in 2012 was over 700 million units and according to an industry
research, smartphones are expected to take the lead in the mobile phone
market, accounting for the majority of global mobile phone shipments
in 2013. Smartphone prices are also becoming increasingly affordable
and will lead to a faster replacement demand. Together, such factors
will further boost the demand for smartphones in the forthcoming
future. With our strong expertise in the development and production
of plastic protective cases for smartphones, the Group is set to benefit
tremendously from this growing market trend.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

As 3C (communication, computer and consumer electronics) products
have become increasingly popular in the market, it is expected that the
demand for 3C products will surge substantially in the forthcoming
future. Riding on this fast growing market trend, the Group will
endeavor to focus all its effort on the research and development with
regard to the applications of different alloys, production technology and
surface finishing solutions with an aim to become a market leader of the
3C products’ industries in China.

In view of the flourishing development of notebook computer casings,
the Group has committed to expand its production capacity to meet
customers’ surging demand. As a result, the Group has embarked its
construction on the second phase of the industrial complex in Daya Bay,
Huizhou, the PRC comprising a gross floor area of approximately 23,000
sq.m. We expect the new production facility to commence operation by
the third quarter of 2013.

The Group has always committed to generating attractive returns for
its shareholders and implementing a high dividend payout policy. In
recognition of our shareholders’ continuous support, the Board of
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.3
cents (2011: HK4.3 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December
2012. Taking into account the interim dividend of HK1.6 cents (2011:
0.66 cents) per share paid in September 2012, total dividends for
the year will be HK9.9 cents (2011: HK4.96 cents) per share, which
represents an increase of approximately 99.6% over that of the previous
year and representing a dividend payout of 70.0% (2011: 70.2%).
Notwithstanding its high dividend payout ratio, the Group is convinced
that it can sustain a rapid business growth and maximize its return to the
shareholders over the years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FREHE (E)

Global quantitative easing policy has artificially depressed the cost of
capital. As a result, immoderate cash holding might not be a wise option
for our shareholders as the deposit rate is very minimal and in turn,
pulls down the return on equity. Seizing the opportunity of persisting
low interest rate in the market, the Group will strategically take full
advantage of external financing as the low cost of capital provides the
opportunity to diversify its business through investments in related and
promising new businesses and a reasonable gearing level is suitable for
the Group’s long term business development and will give a better return
to our shareholders.

To cope with market challenges and achieve sustainable development,
the Group has always been emphasizing and supporting technology
enhancement and innovation, and devoting to enhance the application,
research and development of new technology, materials and production
techniques. Through innovation of technology and combining integrated
production techniques to add value to its products constantly, and
together with its ability to respond quickly to changes for which the
Group has always been proud of, the Group will look to build on the
achievements realized over the past years and elevate the Group to the
next height.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, bankers and suppliers for their continuing support; our fellow
board members for their proactive direction; and our management
and employees for their dedicated contribution towards the continual
progress of the Group.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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(A)

(B)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Driven by the buoyant demand for magnesium alloy notebook
computer casings as well as plastic protective cases for
smartphones, the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2012 surged by 31.7% to HK$1,568,958,000 (2011:
HK$1,191,698,000) when compared with that of last year.
Meanwhile, gross profit as well as profit attributable to owners
of the Company has also recorded a remarkable increase of
53.2% to HK$353,705,000 (2011: HK$230,808,000) and 100.4%
to HK$125,894,000 (2011: HK$62,820,000) respectively as
compared with that of last year. Resulting from the economy of
scale in production caused by the increase in turnover coupled
with a favourable change in product mix, the Group’s gross profit
margin for the year has improved significantly from 19.4% to
22.5%.

During the year, the Group recorded an increase of approximately
33.4% in operating costs and other operating expenses
which included selling and distribution expenses, general and
administrative expenses and other expenses to approximately
HK$195,138,000 (2011: HK$146,327,000), accounting for
approximately 12.4% (2011: 12.3%) of the Group’s total
turnover. The overall increase was mainly attributable to the
increased expenditure on research and development for new
products and production technologies as well as staff costs to
support the demand for rapid growth of the Group’s new lines of
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Zinc alloy die casting business

The turnover of zinc alloy die casting business dropped by 12.1%
to HK$307,603,000 (2011: HK$349,859,000), accounting for
approximately 19.6% (2011: 29.4%) of the Group’s overall
turnover. This was mainly due to the slowdown in the global
economy which had a negative impact on the demand for
household products. As a result, the turnover of this business
segment has inevitably experienced a decline. Following the
gradual recovery of the global economy, the Group anticipates
that the market demand for zinc alloy die casting products will be
revitalized in the forthcoming future.

(A)

(B)
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Magnesium alloy die casting business

Following the growing popularity of the Ultrabook, the Group’s
magnesium alloy die casting business has recorded a robust
growth and the turnover of this business segment has reached
HK$503,326,000 (2011: HK$286,873,000) during the year,
representing an increase of 75.5% when compared with that
of last year. The contribution of this business segment to the
Group's turnover also grew from 24.1% to 32.1%. Riding on the
widely application of magnesium alloy for notebook computer
casings, the Group has successfully gained a larger market
share during the year. The Group will further capitalize on its
competitive advantages in this notebook computer casing industry
by expanding its production capacity, with an aim to become a
leading one-stop solution provider in the notebook computer
casing manufacturing industry.

= 4

Aluminium alloy die casting business

The turnover of aluminium alloy die casting business eroded
to HK$201,126,000 (2011: HK$253,035,000) for the year,
representing a decline of 20.5% as compared with that of 2011.
Its contribution to the Group’s turnover also decreased from
approximately 21.2% in 2011 to 12.8% in 2012. Resulting from
the uncertainties inherent in the global economy which affected
consumer confidence and sales of household products, the
Group’s aluminium alloy die casting business had taken the hit.
With the economy of the United States, as well as other regions,
already showing signs of gradual recovery, the Group expects
the demand for household products to recover steadily in the
forthcoming future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Plastic injection moulding business

Benefiting from the booming smartphone market, the Group’s
plastic injection moulding business continued to be a strong
growth driver for the Group during the year. The turnover of this
business segment recorded a remarkable growth of 84.4% to
HK$556,903,000 (2011: HK$301,931,000) when compared with
that of last year. This business segment has become one of the
larger sales contributor to the Group during the year, accounting
for 35.5% (2011:
of smartphone continue to increase, the demand for plastic

25.3%) of the overall turnover. As shipments

protective cases will also rise persistently. It is expected that this
business segment will remain as one of the strong growth drivers
for the Group in the forthcoming future.

PROSPECTS

The slowdown in the global economy has lasted longer than
what most expected. Against the backdrop of a stagnant market
situation, consumer confidence is expected to be persistently
dampened. To maintain our competitive position in this difficult
market environment, the Group will continue to improve its
productivity and operational efficiency with a strong focus on
value-added products and services.

The launch of the Ultrabook, together with the release of the
new Windows 8 operating system, will certainly stimulate the
replacement demand of notebook computers. The powerful
functionality features together with the sleek and compact design
of the Ultrabook will undoubtedly lead the trend of notebook
computers entering into a new era. In addition, the Group
believes that conventional notebook computer manufacturers
will be inclined to shift from plastic to metal casings, because of
the latter’s ultra slimness feature and superior heat dissipation.
Meanwhile, the Group also anticipates that the upcoming
market trend will place more focus on the surface finishing of
these metal notebook computer casings. As such, the Group
will emphasize its research and development on the provision of
various surface finishing solutions so as to satisfy the needs from
different customers. Other than notebook computer casings,
the application of magnesium alloy can also be extended to
telecommunication and consumer electronics products. To fully
leverage on its expertise in magnesium alloy die casting, the
Group will actively search for new 3C (communication, computer
and consumer electronics) products’ customers with an aim to
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further enhance its turnover and profitability. In view of its future
business development trend, the Group expects this business
segment will gradually become the biggest sales contributor to
the Group in the years to come.

Global shipment of smartphone will continue to rise in the
coming future and the launch of new smartphones and tablets
will motivate the demand for plastic protective cases. Protective
cases have currently accounted for the majority of smartphone
accessory sales and represented a reflection of a user’s style and
character. As such, the Group, as a professional one-stop solution
provider, will leverage on its competitive advantages and prepare
itself to meet the enormous market demand.

Apart from focusing on its original equipment manufacturing
("OEM"), the Group has also been striving to enhance its business
to a higher level by developing original design manufacturing
("ODM") and original brand manufacturing (“OBM") businesses.
The Group believes that these new lines of business can enhance
its turnover and profitability. To this end, the Group has been
actively involved in the development and marketing of its own
light emitting plasma (“LEP”) lighting products. Under the
pressure of global warming and high energy costs, the demand
for various forms of new energy products is expected to increase
significantly. Meanwhile, the requirement for replacing traditional
lighting by energy-saving lights has attracted intensive interests
amongst consumers. The Group has participated in several major
light fairs held in the United States, Hong Kong and China
in 2012 in order to promote its LEP lighting technology and
products and has since received many enquiries for such products.
During the year, orders for LEP product samples including street
light, car parking light, grow light and industrial light have been
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received from customers essentially from the United States and
European countries. Since LEP lighting technology is still new to
the market, the Group will devote more resources to promote
these LEP products in North America, Europe and South America.
It is expected that LEP lighting technology and products will
eventually win the market’s recognition and open up a new
source of revenue for the Group.

The Group is also active in pursuit of potential strategic
partnerships as well as merger and acquisition opportunities so
as to add higher value to its existing business through synergy.
As such, the Group has recently set up a joint venture in Anhui
Province, China in March 2013 for the research and development,
sale and production of computer and communication related
products and components primarily using magnesium alloy as
the production material. Strategically located in Anhui Province,
where a number of renowned international and domestic players
in the electronics and computer industry cluster, this joint venture
aims to utilize its geographical advantage to better serve the
nearby technological products’ manufacturing bases and provide
timely support to customers during their early stage of design
and development for new products. In addition, the joint venture
will also expand into other related businesses in order to capture
the new market needs. The overall market of the computer and
communication related peripheral products have been growing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

S8 [ 5

(D)

Ko (48)

rapidly in recent years. Having acquired the requisite knowledge
and extensive market network from our joint venture partners,
the set-up of this joint venture will not only strengthen the
Group's existing business development capability, but also provide
a platform for the Group to explore and develop in other new
business sectors. The operation of this joint venture is expected to
commence by the third quarter of 2013.

Resulting from the third quantitative easing launched by the
United States back in September 2012, cost of capital has been
maintained at its historical low and is expected to continue
for another year. Taking advantage of this low interest cost
environment, the Group will strategically make use of external
financing to look for promising business expansion and joint
venture investment opportunities which will have a synergy effect
with the Group as this will give a better return to its shareholders
from the financial perspective.

Moving forward, the Group is optimistic on its future business
development and growth. The Group will continuously enhance
its core business by the effective use of resources while at the
same time, seize suitable opportunities to sustain its market
leadership in an ever-changing business environment.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$135,243,000 (2011: HK$179,433,000),
of which were either denominated in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars.

most
Renminbi or

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2012 were approximately HK$330,883,000 (2011:
HK$269,190,000), comprising bank loans and overdrafts of
approximately HK$325,575,000 (2011: HK$256,796,000) and
obligations under finance leases of approximately HK$5,308,000
(2011: HK$12,394,000). All of these borrowings were either
denominated in US dollars or Hong Kong dollars to which the
interest rates applied were primarily subject to floating interest
rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE ko (58)

(E)

(F)

(G)

As at 31 December 2012, the net gearing ratio (a ratio of the sum
of total bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases less
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances (if any) and bank
and cash balances then divided by total equity) of the Group was
approximately 24.0% (2011: 12.4%)

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the Group
were approximately HK$174,966,000 (2011: HK$195,428,000),
which consisted of current assets of approximately
HK$934,083,000 (2011: HK$676,071,000) and current liabilities
of approximately HK$759,117,000 (2011: HK$480,643,000),
representing a current ratio of approximately 1.2 (2011: 1.4).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such, the Group is aware
of the potential foreign currency risk that may arise from the
fluctuation of exchange rates between US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. In order to mitigate the risks due to
fluctuation of foreign currency exchange rates, the Group had
entered into foreign currency forward contracts to manage its
foreign currency exposure during the year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by guarantees given by the following assets: (a) lessors’
title to the leased assets under finance leases; and (b) a property
situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE ko (8)

(H)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 5,400
full-time employees (2011: 4,800). The Group attributes its
success to the hard work and dedication of its staff as a whole,
therefore, they are deemed to be the most valuable assets of the
Group. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package, including retirement scheme,
medical benefit and bonus. The Group’s remuneration policy and
structure is determined based on market trends, the performance
of individual staff as well as the financial performance of the
Group. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and
share award scheme as incentive and reward for those qualifying
staff who have made contribution to the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for different level
of staff and holds various training programs together with PRC
institutes and external training bodies. Apart from academic
and technical training, the Group also organizes different kinds
of recreational activities, including New Year gathering, various
sport competitions and interest groups. The aim is to promote
interaction among staff, establish harmonious team spirit and
promote healthy lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 57, is the Chairman of the Board, an Executive
Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall
business strategies of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience in
the die casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a master degree in engineering
from the Yanshan University. He was conferred an award of Honorary
Fellowship by the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the Chairman of
the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now become the Hong Kong
Diecasting and Foundry Association (the “HKDFA")) in 1989. He was
elected as the first Chairman of the HKDFA and Hong Kong Federation
of Innovative Technology and Manufacturing Industries (formerly
known as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal Industries) in
2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is also the Director of the China
Foundry Association, the Deputy Director of the Plasticity Engineering
Branch of China Machinery Engineering Association, Director of the
Guangdong Foundry Industry Association, the Vice-Director General of
the Guangdong Mechanical Engineering Association Die Casting Branch,
the Chairman of Pinghu Chamber of Commerce, Shenzhen and the
Vice President of Longgang District General Chamber of Commerce,
Shenzhen, the PRC. Mr. Lee is currently a member of Hunan Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the Fourth Longgang District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Shenzhen, the Deputy
Director of Sub-committee 4 on Die Casting of National Technical
Committee 54 on Foundry of Standardization Administration of China,
the Deputy Secretary General and member of Sub-committee 2 on
Metal Hot-forming Branch of National Technical Committee 186 on
Foundry Machinery of Standardization Administration of China and the
Deputy Director of the Fourth Die Casting Technical Committee, Foundry
Institution, Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society.

Dr. Keung Wing Ching, aged 61, is the Vice Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management, as well as supervision of the execution of the overall
business strategies of the Group. Dr. Keung graduated from the National
Taiwan University with a bachelor degree in mechanical engineering.
He obtained his master degree and doctorate degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of Birmingham, the United Kingdom. Dr.
Keung has over 25 years of experience in the fields of metal forming,
mechanical processing and information technology. He is a Chartered
Engineer, a professional member of the Institute of Materials, Minerals
& Mining (UK) and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SERERERAR(E)

Prior to joining the Group in 2005, he worked with the Hong Kong
Productivity Council for more than 25 years and his last position was the
Branch Director, Information Technology and Services.

Dr. Keung is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the HKDFA,
the Honorary Chairman of the board of directors of Hong Kong Critical
Components Manufacturers Association, a committee member of the
Hong Kong Q Mark Council of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
Vice President of China Foundry Association and Standing Committee
Member of the Foundry Institution of Chinese Mechanical Engineering
Society. Dr. Keung is currently an advisor of the Guangzhou Science
& Technology Association and a member of Shandong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr.
Keung is also currently an independent non-executive director of Fong’s
Industries Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Joined
the Group in 1988, Mr. Wong is now responsible for the Group's
manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in
die design and manufacturing and the die casting industry. He is an
Associate of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, aged 52, is an Executive Director,
Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s accounting and financial
affairs. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Chan held a senior
financial position with a listed company in Hong Kong for over 8 years
and has over 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree in accounting and
financial analysis from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, the United
Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, Jp, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June 2007. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Sun is an associate of the Institute of
Industrial Engineers of Ohio and has over 30 years of experience in the
household products manufacturing industry. Mr. Sun was appointed the
Justice of the Peace in July 2003 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Hong Kong Government in July 2006. He is a member of
the 11th Zhejiang Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is currently the Honorary President of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’
Association, Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council,
the President of the Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association and
the President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association.
Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of Ming Fai
International Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of China
South City Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
SSFhaRERAR (E)

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBs, MH, JP, aged 60, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June 2007.
Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctorate degree in engineering, master degrees in
engineering and business administration respectively and a bachelor
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo was awarded with the
“Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons Selection” in 1992, the “Medal of Honour” of the
Hong Kong Government in July 2001, and was appointed “Justice of
the Peace” of the Hong Kong Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in July
20009.

Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
representing the Engineering Functional Constituency. He has over 30
years of experience in the electronic and power supply industry. He is an
Adjunct Professor of the City University of Hong Kong, Visiting Professor
of the Vocational Training Council and Guest Professor of the University
of Electronic Science and Technology Zhongshan College.

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June 2007. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Yeow is a
fellow member of both CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries, and a member of both the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Yeow previously worked for Price Waterhouse & Co. in Australia
from 1969 to 1974 and KPMG in Hong Kong from 1974 to 1976
and was the Chief Accountant of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council from 1976 to 1987. In 1988, Mr. Yeow joined the Hong Kong
Productivity Council and became the general manager in finance until his
retirement in 2005.

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 16 December 2009. Mr. Look
holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University of Toronto and
has over 20 years’ experience in the equity investment analysis of Hong
Kong and China stock markets. From 2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in
Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS"”) as the head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product. He was rated as the best Hong Kong strategist
and best analyst by the Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly financial
and capital markets publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is
currently the managing director and chief investment officer of Look's
Asset Management Limited, a fund management company founded
by him in April 2009. Mr. Look is also currently an independent non-
executive director of TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SERERERAR(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 40, joined the Group in 2004 and is the
director of sales and marketing of the Group. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing the sales and marketing activities of the Group. Mr.
Chan holds a master degree in industrial engineering and industrial
management and a bachelor degree in engineering from the University of
Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a senior consultant
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council for over 9 years.

Mr. Wong Wai Chung, Peter, aged 58, joined the Group in 2012 and
is the director of operation. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
the Group’s overall operation. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree
in engineering from the McGill University, Canada and has over 30
years' experience in plastic, metal and electronics manufacturing and
management.

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 50, joined the Group in 2012 and is the director
of Group Investment and Financing. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the Group’'s investment, corporate development and
capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds a MBA degree in
Finance, Corporate Accounting and Organization from the University
of Rochester, USA. He has over 20 years of experience in banking,
corporate finance and investment. Prior to joining the Group, he has
served finance, investment and management functions within both
financial institution and corporate business, working closely with
different multinational and local companies in Asia, covering mergers
and acquisitions, equity and project investments.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture of zinc, magnesium
and aluminium alloy die casting and plastic injection products and
components which are mainly sold to customers engaging in the
household products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products and automotive parts industries. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 41.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK8.3 cents per share to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 15
May 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
2 May 2013 to Monday, 6 May 2013, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 30 April 2013.

The register of members will be closed from Monday, 13 May 2013 to
Wednesday, 15 May 2013, both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
10 May 2013.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 46.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’'s reserve available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$344,429,000 (2011: HK$
263,132,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major customers and
suppliers attributable to the Group’s total sales and total purchases were
as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 29.1%
— five largest customers combined 80.2%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 8.2%
— five largest suppliers combined 30.1%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2012 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are set out on page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities of
the Company.
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THE BOARD

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)

Dr. Keung Wing Ching (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, Jp

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Andrew Look

The biographical details of the directors are set out on page 19 to 21 of
this annual report.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Wong
Wing Chuen, Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, Jp and Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” set out on page 31 of this annual report, there was no
contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing on Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares

Name of Director

Capacity

EEASR 5

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee") Interest in controlled company

FERBEENFTEED S e NG
Beneficial owner
EnfEB A

Dr. Keung Wing Ching Beneficial owner

ZOKIEB T BERBEAA

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner

KB EE EnfEB A

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan Beneficial owner

PR S St BEmfEA A

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIYFHTES

Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner

B RS A EnEAA

Beneficial owner

BHEBEAA

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, JP
[E & B 1E 8BS - MH - A Fa+
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Approximate
percentage of interest
in the Company
RN

BHBES

Number of
Shares

egngd=

607,200,000 68.28%
780,000? 0.09%
20,842,000 2.34%
18,480,000 2.08%
570,000? 0.06%
7,147,000 0.80%
7,000,000 0.79%
1,000,000 0.11%
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
("Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest
in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of
Precisefull in the Company.

2. Such interest in shares was held pursuant to options granted under the

share option scheme, details of which are described in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” in this report set out on page 28 to 30.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as
disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2012
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons, other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

&t

Beneficial owner

BEmEE A

Precisefull
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Note:

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such, Mr.
Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the directors and the
chief executive of the Company were aware of any other persons (other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 2 June 2007. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
until 1 June 2017 and each option will be granted at a consideration for
HK$10.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include directors,
employees, consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers, agents,
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares at the time
of listing. In addition, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
involving the issue or grant of share options by the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant should not
exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.
Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders of the Company at general meetings, with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be 74,304,000 shares, representing
approximately 8.3% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified
by the Board at the time of the offer of grant, and must expire no later
than 10 years from the effective date of the Share Option Scheme. There
is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an option
must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved before
an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Board and will be not less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day;

(ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.
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On 13 March 2008, the Company granted 20,102,000 share options to R-ZZEZENE=A+=H ' A A FIREERE
the Group’s employees under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise 5t 2| A 4 & E & 8 # 120,102 Ooo{wﬁﬂﬁg
price of HK$0.415 per share. A summary of movements of share options  {TEEAEK0.415BT - RAEEZE R - AAQ

of the Company during the year is set out as below: PR ZESlnT

Number of share options

BREYE
Lapsed/

Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled  Outstanding
Category of Date of Price Exercise As at during during during as at
Grantee/Name grant (HKS) Period  01/01/2012 the year the year the year 31/12/2012

RRA T%E R-2-Z% RER RER RER
R/ #E RiAH (B 7) -A-H R e Ru/EH

Executive Directors

BITES
Mr. Lee 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009- 780,000 - - - 780,000
FRE 12/03/2018
Dr. Keung Wing Ching 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009- - - - - -
ZKERT 12/03/2018
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009- 570,000 - - - 570,000
BABRE 12/03/2018
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009- - - - - -
RES%HE 12/03/2018
Others
At
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009- 4,240,000 - 2,330,000 - 1,910,000
EE 12/03/2018
Total & 5,590,000 - 2,330,000 - 3,260,000
Notes: B -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1. BRESEARNSERE A HREEITERMA
commencement of the exercise period. 1A B HIE -
2. The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant was 2. EEEERERHBHZANKRTER0.415
HK$0.415. EIT o
3. The fair values of options granted and the respective accounting policy 3. CRENEREAFTENEFRZ €T HE
adopted are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. HN R A M B RERM 5E32 °
COMPETING BUSINESS BRPEK

Each of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat and Precisefull has provided a written 23534 4 KPrecisefull & B B IBMHEHEBER -
confirmation, which has been reviewed and confirmed by the YHAQATBIIEHITESEHNRER KE
independent non-executive directors of the Company, confirming that REZ2-_ET——-—F+_A=+—HIFEAD
they have complied with the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered  ESFAR R &) B ZFTE] S 2 0] 5 5 3218 2 5§
into between them and the Company for the year ended 31 December X o

2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 3 November 2009, the Group entered into a master agreement
(the "Master Agreement”) with Chit Shun Machinery Limited (“Chit
Shun”) for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2010 to
31 December 2012, in relation to the purchase of certain die casting
machines and parts (together with the maintenance services). Chit Shun
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and beneficially
owned by Mr. Lee and an independent third party, in equal share. Mr.
Lee has nominated a director to the board of Chit Shun. Besides, Mr.
Chan Tat Cheong, Alan (as a representative of Mr. Lee) sits on the
board of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chit Shun established in the
PRC. Since Mr. Lee is a director and controlling shareholder of Chit
Shun, Chit Shun is a connected person of the Company (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the transactions between the Group
and Chit Shun constitute continuing connected transactions (the “Chit
Shun Transactions”) of the Group. At the extraordinary general meeting
held on 11 December 2009, the independent shareholders of the
Company had approved (i) the Master Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder; and (ii) the proposed annual caps for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Chit Shun Transactions totalled
approximately HK$7,712,000 (2011: HK$5,544,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the Chit Shun Transactions and confirmed that they have been entered
into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparables to judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms
available from other independent parties; and

3 in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on page 31 of the Annual Report in accordance with the Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FFEeWE (&

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the directors.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance practices are essential for promoting investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and reviews its
corporate governance practices on a regular basis.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year"”), the
Company is in compliance with all the code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the Group's overall
business strategies, monitoring and evaluating its operating and financial
performance and reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board has also delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the implementation of
decisions of the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and budgets, and
supervising and monitoring the control systems. The Board has the full
support of the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprises eight members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)

Dr. Keung Wing Ching (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff, BBs, JP

Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, BBS, MH, JP

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

Mr. Andrew Look

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are set out on page 19 to 21 of this annual report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

tERERMmE (B)

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed in
writing his independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis,
the Company considers all such directors to be independent.

All the independent non-executive directors were appointed for a specific
term of two years and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the Year, the Company had arranged one in-house seminar covering the
topics of responsibilities of a listed company director in Hong Kong. All
directors attended the seminar.

The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad
hoc meetings are convened when circumstances require.

During the Year, four Board meetings and one general meeting were
held and details of individual attendance of directors are set out in the
table on page 36 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are
segregated and are not performed by the same person. Mr. Lee Yuen
Fat, the Chairman, is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board while Dr. Keung Wing Ching, the Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the overall management and
supervision of the execution of the overall business strategies of the
Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June 2007. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group
as well as to provide advice and comments to the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John, Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff Bgs, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai
Kwok BBs, MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look and is chaired by Mr. Yeow Hoe
Ann John, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls.

During 2012, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review the
financial statements of the Group with the external auditor and discussed
on the internal control matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CO TINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of directors and the management of the Board succession.
The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs,
Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok 8BS, MH, Jp, Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John, Mr. Andrew
Look and Dr. Keung Wing Ching. Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, Jp is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review
the structure, size and the composition of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in June 2007.
The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and determining the terms of remuneration packages, the award of
bonuses and other compensation payable to individual directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Sun
Kai Lit Cliff Bgs, sp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok BBS, MH, J;, Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann
John, Mr. Andrew Look and Dr. Keung Wing Ching. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8gs, Jp, an independent
non-executive director.

During 2012, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and
approved the remuneration adjustment of executive directors of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations on changes
and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RERHRE (B)

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HE SR
A summary of attendance of Board and Committee meetings and annual TXREHIN T —_FEFTehTECSHNL
general meeting in 2012 are detailed in the following table: BEAFAGZHERRBE

Number of attendance/Number of meetings
HERB/EBRNE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General

meeting meeting meeting meeting Meeting
Exg BERERE REZERE FMERE e
23 23 23 g3 xE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 4/4 - = — 11
TIRBEEE

Dr. Keung Wing Ching 4/4 - 17 11 1/1
ZKEFLT

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 4/4 - = = 11
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan 4/4 = = - 11
FREELAE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIYFBITES

Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBs, I 4/4 2/2 171 il 171
BRIZU S s - AT+

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok 8BS, MH, JP 4/4 2/2 17 17 11
E{Z & e MH - AF@+

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann, John 4/4 2/2 Al I7Al I7Al
k%A

Mr. Andrew Look 4/4 2/2 il m 11
PER LA

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY EEETEZRGNEETH
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 AR FIE M TR BIM SR+ ATE 2 24T A -
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all #MAZEESIFLEEEERNERR  BERAE
directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required HFE —EZ2HEETIZEESFRIFTEHATEED o
standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EENMBBRRAAE TR
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the EEBHREZHEHIARFEE-ST——_F+=
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December A=+ —HBIEFEHBHRRIET - ARAZ
2012. The statement of the external auditor of the Company in relation JMNEZHMMHEH A EBPBHRE 2 BRET
to their reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group ~ M2 H 2 &8 » BN FE39RFL08 2 BT ZE
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 39 and 40. B R & A e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ investments. There is currently an internal
audit department within the Group. Its duties are to review the systems
of internal controls covering all relevant financial, operational and
compliance control functions within an established framework. Reports
prepared by this department are submitted to the Audit Committee
of the Company for review to ensure that an effective and adequate
internal control system has been in place.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory audit work and non-
audit services of the Group is set out as follows:

TtERERMmSE (B)

R S 12
EEg2RARARARER2MAE RN A
ERERES UREAKEEERBRRZEKE -
BREEE - NEZIM  ABRERBRAA
MERRG BRCBEVYHNORBEANAERR
BIT5 - 858 AR AR I R4 R BE - % BB PIPTR
HRESRERARACERZESEHN U
BREMNERNZ AMEREEZREEFE -

BB AT 2 B =
A E T AT B RIEBRRE ORK
MEEmT -

2012 2011
===k
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Statutory audit TR E B 1,250 1,020
Non-audit services B 370 250
Total B 1,620 1,270
Note: Bt
1. Non-audit services mainly include interim review and tax advisory service. 1. EERETEQREPHERRHEE AR
& o
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS B 5 > R
Procedures for convening extraordinary general meeting BREBBHARERBIAEZEF

on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting may be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionit(s) by the Company.

REARFABBIZAAFEAE - FRIRRAK
ENAA-—RASZERFARRERAEH  %F
BERRIEHEREAARAEARAEZRAL
PRt W ERERRAELERE - AR
BRANEEALARNESEXRAWERD
HUBREZQBRER B ERMEER M
EBMARBRFIAE -BHSRBHEER
ZAELERMEANGR -MEEGFEFRE
EXAMRT —_+t—BARBETLYEREA
e MFERKAEZERFERA)ARBERT
ANETTERER BERRARESTEREEZAR
AREZMBRNAEREER  AHARA
BEBRA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

tERERMmE (B)

Procedure for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, specifying
the shareholding information of the shareholder, contact details and the
proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any
specified business and its supporting documents.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions in relation to their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Shareholders may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent
that such information is publically available. Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room 1210, Exchange Tower, 33
Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to
131, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BN B RS ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e Bmx
For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Turnover B 6 1,568,958 1,191,698
Cost of sales $HE B (1,215,253) (960,890)
Gross profit EF 353,705 230,808
Other income H At WA 7 5,432 2,463
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (22,828) (17,996)
General and administrative expenses — MR RITHAX (172,291) (125,114)
Other operating expenses Hfh @R % (19) (3,217)
Profit from operations L RF 163,999 86,944
Finance costs A& KA 9 (6.769) (4,644)
Profit before tax B Bt A0 % A 157,230 82,300
Income tax expense FriS i f X 10 (31,336) (19,480)
Profit for the year attributable KRABEEFE AR

to owners of the Company F A Fl 11 125,894 62,820
HK Cents HK Cents
B BN

Earnings per share SREF 14
Basic =N 14.16 7.09
Diluted e 14.12 7.05
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HAEEENRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

2012 2011
—EB—=fF —T——F
HK$' 000 HK$'000
F#ET FEL

Profit for the year FRER 125,894 62,820
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2 mEKE :
Exchange differences on translating MEBINEBEECIELEZTE

foreign operations 5,474 21,407
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land HELTHWEEEHZAH 14,421 85,623
Income tax relating to components of 5 8 A fth 2 TE U 5 4B B B 1D

other comprehensive income Z T H (2,978) (16,878)
Other comprehensive income F BRI % H A 2 E Wz

for the year, net of tax 16,917 90,152
Total comprehensive income AR EERFEAEBEER

for the year attributable to 2HEINGZEE

owners of the Company 142,811 152,972
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR e BB R

At 31 December 2012 R =ZF——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - R R 15 655,383 547,081
Club membership = P i 718 718
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 17 - =
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, TERNEEYE  #E Kk
plant and equipment Bl & 18 6,493 5,800
662,594 553,599
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 253,675 197,282
Trade receivables 2 5 e RIE 20 486,041 272,152
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JEf K18 « &4 & H b fE UL A 58,532 27,204
Financial assets at fair value through RATEGFAEREREN
profit or loss EREE 21 592 =
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITER 22 - 12,285
Restricted bank balance R HIERITF K 22 - 2,457
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS AR 22 135,243 164,691
934,083 676,071
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B SN IE 23 320,043 153,635
Deposits received B e 4,584 3,540
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRETER 73,972 50,170
Due to a related company P&~ B 2 Rl FRIA 24 3,428 723
Financial liabilities at fair value through RRATEFFABEREED
profit or loss CREE 21 - 605
Bank borrowings RITER 25 325,575 256,796
Current portion of obligations under BB ME A AER RN
finance leases 26 3,978 7,089
Current tax liabilities BIEAMIA & (& 27,537 8,085
759,117 480,643
Net current assets RBEEFRE 174,966 195,428
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERABER 837,560 749,027
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e BB E (8

At 31 December 2012 R =—F——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —T——F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B F#ET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Obligations under finance leases BhE AR A A 26 1,330 5,305
Deferred tax liabilities BRIER AR E 28 20,456 19,266
21,786 24,571
NET ASSETS EEFE 815,774 724,456
Capital and reserves BEAXK#E
Share capital fi& 2 30 89,044 88,811
Reserves ffE 31 726,730 635,645
TOTAL EQUITY SR 815,774 724,456
Approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2013 Exen _T—=F=FA+/\BitE
Lee Yuen Fat Keung Wing Ching
TR FIKIE
Director Director
EZE EFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB AR LR

At 31 December 2012 R=ZFE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR HRE 16 28,933 21,590
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERNRIE  REe Rk
other receivables H b B Uk SR8 275 264
Due from subsidiaries JE W /B A R 5K IE 16 410,759 392,904
Bank and cash balances IRIT R e E8e 22 99 261
411,133 393,429
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HiEMRIBEREFEA 9 10
Financial guarantee contracts MEEREY 29 6,213 7,839
Due to subsidiaries R NGIE 16 - 54,610
6,222 62,459
Net current assets REBEERE 404,911 330,970
NET ASSETS EEFE 433,844 352,560
Capital and reserves EEFE
Share capital % 7 30 89,044 88,811
Reserves fEfE 31 344,800 263,749
TOTAL EQUITY A 433,844 352,560
Approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2013 EEeR T —=F=A+ N \B#E
Lee Yuen Fat Keung Wing Ching
E=RE EXKIE
Director Director
EF EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
:\\/T\ 1;_”- /\/\ I%:"z‘ Eb EE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 —F——F+—-HA=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company
ANARREEARGRR
Foreign
currency Share

Share Share  Retained Capital Merger translation option  Statutory Revaluation Total
capital  premium  earnings  reserve  reserve  reserve  [eserve  reserve  reserve equity
kx  ROBE RERA EARE SRR  ENRE BRERE iERE  EfRE REEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

At 1 January 2011 RZE--%5-f-H 88,263 199,751 265,655 8,036 (9,931) 32,219 11,779 7,666 - 603438
Total comprehensive income 4 P92 T i

for the year - - 62,820 - - 21,407 - - 68,745 152,972
Issue of shares upon the T FBEREMES

exercise of share options 2R3 548 1725 - - - - - - - 2,273
Forfeiture of share options %2 B R 1E = - 10605 - = - (10,605) = = =
Erercise of share options 171 2 EE MR i - 584 - - - - (584) - - -
Recognition of share-based BB LA RiELE

payments & - - - - - - b - - 2
Dividend paid EARE - - (34259 - - - - - - (34254)
Changes in equity ERERRD

for the year 548 2,309 39,171 - - 21,407 (11,162) - 68,745 121,018
At 31 December 2011 and  R=F——F

1 January 2012 TZA=1t-8k

“%-ZF-f-H 88,811 202,060 304,826 8,036 (9,931) 53,626 617 7,666 68,745 724,456

Total comprehensive income /92 i

for the year - - 125,894 - - 5,474 - - 11,443 142,811
Issue of shares upon the  E{T{EEREMET

exercise of share options &3 233 734 - - - - - - - 967
Exercise of share options 17 2 kg - 26 - - - - (246) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve EBEEEREE - - (39) - - - = 39 - =
Dividend paid ERRE - - (52,460) - - - - - - (52,460)
Changes in equity ERERLRY

for the year 233 980 73,395 - - 5,474 (246) 39 11,443 91,318
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—%5+-4

=t-A 89,044 203,040 378221 8,036 (9,931) 59,100 n 7,105 80,188 815,774
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &t 2 —F——F+_-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEKMERESFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 33(a) 99,633 10,308

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFEH2HEFKE

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits & IR 1T 1FZ R A (3 h0) 12,285 (10,053)
Interest received 2 W F 8 819 1,120
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HERRE

plant and equipment 886 399
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB ¥ - #eS & H (145,410) (59,528)
Deposit paid for the acquisition of property, JEfT#)3 « #2E K

plant and equipment RE2Ee (6,422) (3,794)
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMEESFE (137,842) (71,856)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETH2RHERE

ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares upon the exercise of EATE R Em T2

share options & 17 967 2,273
Dividends paid B S (52,460) (34,254)
Net short term bank loans raised IR BRI E SRR 78,206 54,104
Inception of finance leases iR E 49 - 12,322
Repayment of obligations under BEFEMEOERE

finance leases (7,086) (11,881)
Repayment of long term bank loans EERHRITER (45,827) (25,159)
Long term bank loans raised Mg RHRITER 36,400 103,000
Net cash generated from financing RMETHFEERESTFHE

activities 10,200 100,405
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬁ.ﬁ&g EER£EHE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ) R (28,009) 38,857
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BHERER

AT 1 JANUARY ZLRREIIEAR 164,691 122,532
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgare (1,439) 3,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTZA=Z+—BHWHRER

AT 31 DECEMBER EEBELEER 135,243 164,691
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERERBSHEE DN

EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances RITEBREEH 27 135,243 164,691
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 ¥R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

Annual Report 2012 - —F—=

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Room 1210, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2012, Precisefull Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate parent and Mr. Lee Yuen
Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2012. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 75 s Rk BT o (48

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
leasehold land, certain investments and derivatives which are
carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DR E

——
(%5

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

3.

B 75 s Rk BT o (48

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —F ——F+=-H=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DR E

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(v) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the
currency”). The consolidated financial statements

“functional

are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥R 2k P o i%i)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

exchange rates on the transaction dates);

and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land are carried at fair values, based on periodic
valuations by external independent valuer, less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥R 2k P o i%i)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Revaluation increases of leasehold land are recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that the increases reverse
revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
increases are credited to the revaluation reserve as other
comprehensive income.
offset previous revaluation increases of the same asset

All other revaluation
Revaluation decreases that

remaining in the revaluation reserve are charged against
the revaluation reserve as other comprehensive income.
All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued leasehold
land, the attributable revaluation increases remaining in
the revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
useful lives are as follows:
Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the unexpired
term of lease
over the unexpired term of lease
shorter of 3 years and the unexpired

Leasehold land
Leasehold improvements
term of lease

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and

(d)

(e)

()

equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Leases

()

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

()

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y at (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

——#+=A=+—F8

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Investments
Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade

date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial

assets.

()

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets not classified as trade
and other receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are recognised in profit or
loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥R 2k P o i%i)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

(k)

(0)

Investments (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
for equity investments classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are not subsequently
reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss for debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently reversed and recognised in profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified

(m)

according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for

specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set

out below.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the contracts,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and
trading of raw materials are recognised on the transfer
of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

(p)

(a)

()

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non

market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments

at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the

until

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥R P at (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —F ——F+=-H=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥R 2k P o i%i)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets except investments, inventories and receivables
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have exercised judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. There was no material impact on
exercising those judgement during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥R MY et (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(i) Allowances for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items that are no longer suitable for
use in production at the end of each reporting
period. The directors estimate the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current operation
conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete items.

Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance/write-back in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

(i) Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of
the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Fair values of leasehold land

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the leasehold
land. In determining the fair values, the valuer
has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 75 R P e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(b)

(vi)

Fair value of derivative component

As disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements, the fair values of the derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period were determined using marking-to-market
approach and discounted cash flow method.
Application of discounted cash flow method
requires the Group to estimate the prominent
factors affecting the fair value, including but not
limited to, the assigned value based on the current
price of that instrument and expected rate of
return. Where the estimation on these factors is
different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the derivative financial instrument in the period in
which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk

and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk

as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in HK$, United States dollars
("USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
other foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.

The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure

closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2012, if HK$ had weakened 0.5 per
cent (2011: 0.5 per cent) against USD with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$439,000
(2011: HK$120,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in USD, but partly offset by the
foreign exchange loss on trade payables denominated in
USD. If HK$ had strengthened 0.5 per cent (2011: 0.5 per
cent) against USD with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$439,000 (2011: HK$120,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on
trade receivables and bank balances denominated in USD,
but partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on trade
payables denominated in USD.

At 31 December 2012, if HK$ had weakened 1 per cent
(2011: 2 per cent) against RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$647,000 (2011:
HK$171,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange loss on trade payables of Hong Kong
subsidiaries denominated in RMB and foreign exchange
gain on trade receivables and bank balances denominated
in HK$ of the subsidiaries operating in the People’s
Republic of China (the “"PRC”). If HK$ had strengthened
1 per cent (2011: 2 per cent) against RMB with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$647,000
(2011: HK$171,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange gain on trade payables of Hong
Kong subsidiaries denominated in RMB and foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank balances
denominated in HK$ of the subsidiaries operating in the
PRC.
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5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2012, if RMB had weakened 1 per cent
(2011:
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,515,000 (2011:
HK$2,990,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on trade receivables denominated
in USD. If RMB had strengthened 1 per cent (2011: 2 per
cent) against USD with all other variables held constant,

2 per cent) against USD with all other variables

consolidated profit after tax for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,515,000 (2011: HK$2,990,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
loss on trade receivables denominated in USD.

At 31 December 2011,
USD had weakened 2 per cent with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$8,912,000 higher,
arising mainly as a result of the gain on the RMB to USD
forward contract included in the financial assets/liabilities

if the exchange rate for RMB to

at fair value through profit or loss. If the exchange rate for
RMB to USD had strengthened 2 per cent with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$8,912,000
lower, arising mainly as a result of the loss on the RMB
to USD forward contract included in the financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. At 31
December 2012, the Group is exposed to insignificant
foreign currency risk with respect to the RMB to USD
forward contract.
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B (ZF——4F 12,990,000/
L) EEZHUETHEZES
R s 3 T B A HNEE UR ZR FTER o i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y at (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

5.

(b)

(c)

——#+=A=+—F8

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Price risk

The Group's financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
commodity price risk. The directors manage this exposure
by closely monitoring the price of the commodity and
adopting measures to reduce the risk, if necessary.

At 31 December 2012,
5 per cent with all other variables held constant,

if the zinc price had increased

consolidated profit after tax for the year would have
been approximately HK$21,000 (2011: HK$11,000)
higher, arising mainly as a result of the gain on the
zinc forward contracts included in the financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. If the zinc
has decreased 5 per cent with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$21,000 (2011: HK$11,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the loss on zinc forward
contracts included in the financial assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Credit risk
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, pledged
bank deposits,
cash balances included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposures to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

restricted bank balance and bank and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ﬂ*#&i‘%ﬁﬁuf(%&é)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

The percentage of trade receivables due from the Group’s
largest customer and due from the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate to the Group’s total trade
receivables are as follows:

5. MERREE(E)
() FERR R
AEEREAEFRAARFNE
5 R E @ E (A R B E 58
WHERBENESLWT :

Due from the Group’s largest  fEU AN £ Bl & K& F 3008

customer
Due from the Group’s five EUWAREBRRANEFKIEA
largest customers

32 35

73 75

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
balance, bank and cash balances and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is limited because the
counterparties are well-recognised banks in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, its compliance with lending covenants
and its relationship with its bankers to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial requirements in the short
and longer term.

HRRXZEFHTARREERTEER
RERT M ERRITER AR
HIRITER  RITRBAEEHRRIZRF
Bt \BalfkcEREENEERRE
BR

(d) RBESEMR
AEEZBERA/EHRERE RS
EewE HE 1%1‘3)7\$ wh N E
HIRTTZBAR - UHEREERE
tAﬁﬁ‘f%E%&FEtZi%%ﬂﬁ

{E %M&éézaﬁk %EF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s bank borrowings and other financial liabilities,
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank'’s
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The maturity analysis for other financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

5.

B E R EE (&)

(d)

REBE SRR (%)
TRINTERTRAZRE (8
BRAONEL (WMRZE)RR
SHMARNBITNERFENONEE
B)RAEETRAERNRT
AH 250 AL BN & E R
RITERREMERABENRT
BHHR -

AREmME  YRROTUT2EBE
TRHZERERGIOESRE
K BEASTRAERERNR
EHE(EIMERARITEELE
REEMEBRNSEEENR 2
JIBRERE  HiteRAENE
HESTAREEERDBRE -

2012
ZB-Cf
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

RS- AFRRER N

More than 1 More than 2 Total

Within  year but less  years but less More  undiscounted

On demand 1year than2years than5years than5years cash outflows

—F0E AENE ARRE

REX -FR  BOREE  BOREE BENLE ol 1

HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

77 FEn FEn FEn

Obligations under finance leases BERNAE - 4,076 1,351 - - 5,427
Bank borrowings RiTtR3 325,575 - - - - 325,575
Other payables and accruals HbENRBRETER 1,293 72,679 - - - 13,972
Trade payables ERE57% 83,732 236,311 - - - 320,043
Due to a related company ERBERAFE 3,428 - - - - 3,428
414,028 313,066 1351 - - 728,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN EL D)
ﬂ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ :é“)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z = &

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

5.

Bt 3% . B B ()
(d *RBEZER(E)

2011
==
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

YA - KRR DR A

UE
(

—A=

Morethan 1 More than 2 Total

Within ~ year but less  years but less More  undiscounted

On demand Tyear  than2years  than5years  than5years  cash outflows

—ENE RENE AR

BEX —£/  @ORAE  EIRLE RENE ikt

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000

TET TEL TET AT FAT FHT

Obligations under finance leases BERNAE 3,031 4,35 4,074 1,348 - 12,688
Bank horrowings RITER 244511 12,475 - - - 256,986
Other payables and accruals A EAFERETER 1,548 48,622 - - - 50,170
Trade payables EE57E 13,567 140,068 - - - 153,635
Due to a related company EREEATRE 3 - - - - 3
263,380 205,400 4,074 1348 - 474,202

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis contained above. Taking into
account the Company’s financial position, the directors
do not consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements.

TERBRRBEMR B EREEGERNE
TR ERE RN AERERHEST
MEEERAANIHEIN - ZE 2
HERRANMNERAENNERE - A
b ZESEREXABIHB TP
MRER IFHBEANRENSERS
ERARBNRBAN - EFRBIRTT
ARATREITREBBRERANESER -
E=ZREZETHERBRERBER

BFHEEENREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—=—F+=H=4+—H

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MR EE (E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) d) RBELRMR(E)

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases subject

to a repayment on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

BB R -WAREREERRNRTEER

REHNARREEERS

On demand More than More than Total

or within 1 year but less 2 years but less More than  undiscounted

1year  than2years  than5 years 5years cash outflows

RERY —FHE MENLE KRR E

—ER BIRWE BHREE EENRE RLAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET FAT FET AT
31 December 2012 “8--§¥+=A=t-H

Bank borrowings RATER 264,652 39,116 24,329 2,426 330,523
31 December 2011 “F——%+-A=t-H

Bank borrowings RITER 168,312 40,770 37,146 3,783 250,011

Obligations under BERMEE
finance leases - 3,050 - - 3,050
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5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from
its bank deposits, short term and long term borrowings
and obligations under finance leases. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$204,000 (2011:
HK$145,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of lower
interest expenses on bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases but partly offset by lower interest
income on bank and cash balances (2011: restricted bank
balance and bank and cash balances). If interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,036,000 (2011:
HK$1,449,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of higher
interest expenses on bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases but partly offset by higher interest
income on bank and cash balances (2011: restricted bank
balance and bank and cash balances).

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,000 (2011: nil)
lower, arising mainly as a result of loss on the interest
rate swap contract included in the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. If interest rates had been
100 basis points higher, with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$13,000 (2011: nil) higher,
arising mainly as a result of gain on the interest rate
swap contract included in the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

5.

B 75 s Rk BT o (48

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —F ——F+=-H=

—H

PR R B B (4]

(e)

R R @ b
AEBWMERRKEHRITHF
FEHMEERBERARBRER
R EHE - ZETF R RMETIRIRBE
BTSN T2 B R TR A X
AR e

RZE——F+=-—A=+—8"
fis F = T BR10ME £ 2+ M H b A
BEREFTE  AFAKRTE
4R A i A 5 3 hn 49204,0005% 7T
(ZZ ——4 : 145,000 Jt) *
FEHRIBITERREE L
EOFERZRDB - 5D
YESHRTEKRBITIRAES
HEHBF B WA R DATIESE (=
T——F : BRBIBITEHR KR
TRBEER) o WFIZE EF100
EEZ  MEMAEEHEFTT
B B F ARk IR A A E
R 492,036,000 T (ZF ——
4 11,449,000 L) r EEBHR
RITERRBERLEENF S
IS DT EE
SRAT R IR B 45 B A F B U A 15 N
FrsE (= ——F - GRHIRTT
HERRIBITRIRSEL) o

RZZE——F+=A=+—H"
i & BFETREI108F + R&
FrEEMEHREFTITE  FERK
FRIEER B R AR A 41,0007 7T
T ——F &) FERERK
AFEFABRZENCREET
BRENFNEEHEOEE - HE
FEEFA100Z 7 BREFMBH
BT FERBEBLR
A i F 3% 18 Hn 913,000 7T (=
T——F:\) TERARQAT
Bt AB=RNEREET BT
MR RIS H A HULES o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥k M ot (BB

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 —F——F+—-HA=+—H

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. U¥ERERE(E)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 f) N=B—=-F+=A=+-—
December 2012 BERMIAEZSE
2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Financial assets: SREE
Loans and receivables (including Bk e IE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREReAXERIREER) 673,470 472,044
Financial assets at fair value through 2 F{ExH AIBZEERM
profit or loss: DRIEE :
Held for trading RHIEER 592 =
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ# K AT HE 2 &R & E 723,018 461,324
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFABRER
through profit or loss: cRBE:
Held for trading FEEE - 605
(g) Fair values (9) A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets AEBZEHEERSHAER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated AR ER R 2 BREE S
statement of financial position approximate their EHEREBZAFEE-

respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a AREBHANUNTAFESEFEE
fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels: WEATENE  EREE=E:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for FIE: HRAEERBBEZER
identical assets or liabilities. M5 WwE CREAE) -
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within F2E: F—EMEREZBREN
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Gh - BERAGEERE (B
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly E1%) sk (B ERS
(i.e. derived from prices). HHE)BREGHZBAER
#} o
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based FIE: WIEBBETEERMES
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). EmMEH2EERARB
WMAEH (BEEE®
A) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE L D)
ﬁ&&%ﬁﬁ & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z =& —A=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. U¥EREE(H)

(g) Fair values (Continued) (9) 2AFEE)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December NEBEEFEBER_ZT——F
2012: +:HE+—HZ%E&ﬁWT-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2012
Description F1E $2B %3 —ZT-=fF
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABEERD
through profit or loss SREE
Derivatives fTETA - 592 - 592
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December ANEBEEREBERN_-_T——&F
2011: TZRE=ET—HZEERBOT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2011
Description i £ F2E F3E ZT——F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TBT T

Financial liabilities at fair value BRATEFAREE

through profit or loss MeEmas

Derivatives HTETE - (605) - (605)
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss RiEFARRZ BN REER
including those assets/liabilities held at the end of BERREMRMFBEE AER
reporting period have been presented in the consolidated EREWERET ©

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 R M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

6. TURNOVER 6.

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and manufacture
of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting and plastic
injection products and components.

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for

goods sold, net of returns and allowances to customers during

EXE
FEBEERFLEERHES BRI
ASERNZEILER RTHARLY -

EXRBENFAHEEEDNE KEEKR
FREFE(EMBREERGTEPN

the year. ) e
2012 2011
—E—_—fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of goods HEEm 1,568,958 1,191,698
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HWA
2012
—E-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Interest income FE WA 819 1,120
Rental income He A 68 -
Sales of scrap materials BERL S 1,067 97
Government grants &R 1,370 367
Unrealised gain on financial assets BRAFEF ABRERD
at fair value through profit or loss S EEERS R W 1,198 =
Realised gain on financial assets at RRATEGFAEREREN
fair value through profit or loss SREEER W 254 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HERRRE 2 s
plant and equipment - 105
Others EHAoth 656 774
5,432 2,463

Government grants mainly comprised unconditional support for
subsiding the Group'’s research and development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ﬂ*#&i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ(%&é)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 — —H=+—H
SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. D EER

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is currently
categorised into four operating divisions — zinc, magnesium
and aluminum alloy die casting and plastic injection products
and components. These divisions are the basis of the Group's
four reportable segments. The Group’s reportable segments are
strategic business units that offer different products. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and different cost measurement.

Segment profits or losses do not include interest income,
corporate income, gain or loss from derivative instruments,

corporate expenses, finance costs and income tax expense.

Information about reportable segment profit or loss:

Magnesium
alloy
die casting

BASEE
HKS'000
FET

RTEER AEEREEHD SME
BEMM-F KRB cEBRER
THEMREMY c ZEHPIEAKEZR
HOEDEEROEE - REEZ 2H
DEHRBEHRTIAERZHORBEERE
- AR BEAXBRETRZMEE T
R ET N WRENRIIBILE
# o

DEEMNREBTBENBRA B
e REMTETAZER XM
X BMEKREARAEHAX

ERAWENREBZERDOT :

Aluminium
alloy Plastic
die casting injection Total
BasBH ERiE Hy
HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FEx FET

Zinc alloy
die casting
BEERBE
HKS$'000
FAET
Year ended 31 December 2012  HEZ-T——%
+-A=+—-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers 2K BN R F B ez 307,603
Segment profit 7 70 7l 7,344
Depreciation ne 13,813

503,326

62,885

18,426

201,126 556,903 1,568,958
15,834 98,327 184,390
10,357 13,933 56,529
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥k M ot (BB

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. oEER (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: ERF;BEAREEZERMT !
(Continued) (%)

Magnesium Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy alloy HEN

die casting die casting die casting injection Total

HAEERE BAcEE HAtEE BB S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2011  HE-T——%+-AH

=t—HIEFE
Revenue from external customers R B 5MNRE PRI & 349,859 286,873 253,035 301,931 1,191,698
Segment profit DEEF 16,699 32,232 37,601 32,953 119,485
Depreciation e 12,834 16,811 10,486 11,368 51,499

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss: 2RSS BAHEEZHER

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue W 2
Total revenue of reportable segments 2 k5 2f 2 4 U =5 1,568,958 1,191,698
Unallocated amounts ToHEEE - .
Consolidated revenue e W 1,568,958 1,191,698
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE L D)
ﬁ&&%ﬁﬁ & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z =& =h=
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. TEHER (8)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, ERFHWE  BFREEZHR
profit or loss (Continued): (4)
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Profit or loss i Fl 2 5 12
Total profit or loss of reportable 2 o A4 N & B
segments 184,390 119,485
Unallocated amounts: THEHEE -
Interest income FE KA 819 1,120
Gain/(loss) on financial BAFEFABRENSR
assets/liabilities at fair value BE/ABEZWE (&)
through profit or loss 1,452 (6,375)
Finance costs A& B AN (6,769) (4,644)
Income tax expense FriEFif < (31,336) (19,480)
Corporate income e 59 122
Corporate expenses TERZ (22,721) (27,408)
Consolidated profit for the year FARZE &N 125,894 62,820

Other material items — depreciation HEttEKEH — &
Total depreciation and amortisation 2 ¥k SP4ATE & # i

of reportable segments 56,529 51,499
Unallocated amounts: THEHE -
Depreciation of property, plant and ERAME - HER
equipment for corporate use RiETE 6,764 6,300
Consolidated depreciation meEmE 63,293 57,799
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 75 R M ot (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.
Geographical information:

2 EHEFR (&)

Revenue
U 2

2012 2011
—E——F == —E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEL
Hong Kong BB 829,100 768,368
The PRC except Hong Kong RE (FBRIN 172,537 118,851
Japan =[P 4,632 9,872
The United States of America (“USA”) E=F|B4FE ([EH]) 488,788 224,879
Others Hith 73,901 69,728
Consolidated total R BER 1,568,958 1,191,698

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on
the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than the PRC are

less than 10% of the aggregate amount of all segments.

Revenue from major customers:

Zinc alloy die casting segment e BED
Customer a % Fa
Customer b EFb

Magnesium alloy die casting segment &4 £ B H =6
Customer ¢ EPFc

Aluminium alloy die casting segment  $54 & B & 5 36
Customer a % Fa

Plastic injection segment BRIFE D E
Customer b EFb
Customer d EPd

2IEERE  KERUATPHIHE
REE -

RAEhmENZED BEREMED
Wz BEL0%  AAREERE
ZHERBDEERBZY -

REFTERF 2 :

2012 2011
—E——F

—T——4F
HK$’000
FHEIT

HK$’000
FHET

126,497 154,507
74,077 91,296
335,399 197,561
100,218 107,745
99,041 107,882
457,031 187,707
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ﬂ*#&i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ(%&é)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 — —H=+—H

FINANCE COSTS

BB XA

2012 2011
—E2-_-F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&ETT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings #2717 & 7 Fl B 5 % 6,561 4,384
Finance lease charges BEHAZ H 208 260
6,769 4,644

Interest on borrowings LA ERZFE
— Wholly repayable within five years *f—E%b,J%ﬁiWﬁE 6,562 4,418
— Not wholly repayable within five years — B2 H RN A FERNEE 207 226
Total finance costs BB K AN AR 6,769 4,644

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases including bank borrowings and
finance leases which contain a repayment on demand clause, in
accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out
in the loan agreements. For the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011, the interest on bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases which contain a repayment on demand clause
amounted to approximately HK$6,585,000 and HK$4,532,000
respectively.

BB RRITIE R R B E AR
MEENA  BIEREERBHTEDN
BTETERBZWERERERER
MIRTTERERERY -BHE-F—=
FRZE-——F+ZA=Z+—BLHF
B RAERERKEEEROBRITERK
BB AR T2 5 B 49 46,585,000
7 7T %.4,532,00078 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 795 ok Y o (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & % — 2

10.

ZF+ZA=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BIEAR IR — & B M S

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Frie®ipe <

2012 2011
—E—_F

—E—— £|E
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T

Provision for the year KEEHEHE 15,837 8,737

Over-provision in prior years T EEBEEE (141) (602)
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax B1EFE B~ B ZEFTE R

Provision for the year REEHEME 17,970 11,526

Over-provision in prior years T FEEREREE (352) (181)
Deferred tax (note 28) EERTE (B72228) (1,978) =
Income tax expense Fr{S i F 2 31,336 19,480

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits of Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2012,
subject to the application of the Departmental Interpretation
Practice Note No. 21 (“DIPN 21") issued by the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong for certain Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries which have conducted their manufacturing operations
by entering into processing arrangements with the processing
factories in the PRC. Pursuant to the DIPN 21, 50% of the
adjusted profits of these subsidiaries were treated as offshore and
not taxable in Hong Kong.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT"”) Law, the
statutory tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries established and
operating in Mainland China is 25% (2011: 25%). However,
one of the Group’s subsidiaries has been recognised as a “New
and High Technology Enterprise” in the PRC and were therefore
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing on the overseas countries in which the Group operates.
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10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ﬁ&&%ﬁﬁ & (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits
tax rate is as follows:

10.

Fﬁ SHBA < ()

—A=1+—H

1575 A ST R BR B A R SR A B B F 5

MHTJZ%

BROYERWT :

2012 2011
—E——f& —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before tax Rk 75 A1 i A 157,230 82,300
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate BREBMEMBE16.5%
at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZZ——% : 16. 5%)#2@13%‘%1,5 25,943 13,579
Tax effect of expenses that are DRI HE 2 S 8
not deductible 3,502 3,537
Tax effect of income that is AR A BT 52
not taxable (246) (1,185)
Tax effect of temporary differences AERTREZENT BT E
not recognised 1,029 791
Reversal of deferred tax liabilities IR FE R IE B & O 5 (1,857) =
Tax effect of tax losses not ARERNIBEB BB E
recognised 3,275 2,015
Over-provision in previous year BIEFEBBERE (493) (783)
(Under)/over-provision for REEF (BEETR)
current year R (1,394) 243
Effect of different tax rates MERARMETRNRIGZE
of subsidiaries 1,577 1,283
Income tax expense Fri5Hif X 31,336 19,480
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred tax MEBEFIEIN  RERNNEERZHE

relating to the revaluation of the Group's leasehold land during

the year has been charged to other comprehensive income.

EtEHcEHECHBECEZEEK

@R 7R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. XRAEEBFEEAEBELEFER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY i Al
AERBFRZEMENR, GTA) T

The Group's profit for the year attributable to owners of the

Company is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

HIH

2012 2011
—E——& —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE 559 558
Allowance for inventories FEREE - 2,772
Reversal of allowance for inventories T E R B (560) =
Bad debts written off 2 R 3 19 72
Impairments on other receivables E At FE U BR R (E - 450
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B &
Provision for the year AN 2 B AR 1,250 1,044
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBEEE (24) (18)
Charge by auditors of the subsidiaries K B2 A% &5 & B 101 152
1,327 1,178
Reversal of allowance for R R 5 15 ol B¢
doubtful debts (559) (635)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 1,126,469 888,571
Depreciation of property, M - HRREBENE
plant and equipment 63,293 57,799
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  HER
plant and equipment HEBE () 207 (105)
Property, plant and equipment W S KRR
written off 51 176
(Gain)/loss on financial assets/liabilities & AFEFABZEZ &R
at fair value through profit or loss BE/AafEz (WE) ER (1,452) 6,375
Net exchange loss HIE H B 1R 997 215
Operating lease charges in respect of T REFEEHOTH
land and buildings 4,686 3,915
Research and development expenditure  fiff 2 5 &% 19,473 9,200
Staff costs: B TR
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) EE5Me (Wit12() 10,713 9,185
Wages and salaries ITERF® 289,856 227,511
Equity-settled share based payments LA P 168 45 & DA RR 1 2 <F B9 3R I8
(excluding directors) (TBIFEES) - 21
Retirement benefits scheme BRARBAGFESRR(TEEES)
contributions (excluding directors) 12,081 9,715
Other benefits H o 18 F 18,854 14,410
331,504 260,842

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges of approximately HK$295,467,000 (2011:
HK$240,798,000), which are included in the amounts disclosed
separately.

EEFERABFEETRA FERK
LA TS 4295,467,0008 T (==
——4%F : 240,798,0008 L) ' HEE &
8o R E -

Research and development expenditure includes staff costs of
approximately HK$7,582,000 (2011: HK$3,758,000), which are
included in the amounts disclosed separately.

MERTPEEBIFENE TRALN
7,582,000/ 7T (= Z——4 : 3,758,000
BT e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &t 2 —F——F+ - H=+—

12. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EE(EEEBEAB)MER
(KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) AND BEEHES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(a) Emoluments of directors (key management (a) ES(EEEEBEAE M
personnel)
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BZEENMeLT -

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and  Discretionary  Share-based scheme
allowances honus payments  contributions
HREBLS RIEH
Name of director e HeRzg MiE#L L5E TEER @it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
&7 AT AT V-3 V-3 V-7
Year ended 31 BE-E-CfF
December 2012 t-A=t-8
Executive directors HIES
Mir. LEE Yuen Fat TRERE - 2,649 800 - 14 3463
Dr. KEUNG Wing Ching ZXEfET - 2217 670 - 14 2,901
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BKRTE - 139 530 - 14 1,938
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan 22 %4 - 1397 400 - 14 1,811
Independent non-executive  BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. SUN Kai Lit, Cliffsss, )b~ TRRIFN: Hoaes - £ 746+ 150 - - - - 150
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok gss,wH, o~ [E{EEIfE Togs - A 74+ 150 - - - - 150
Mr. YEOW Hoe Ann, John ARk E 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Andrew LOOK BREE 150 - - - - 150
Total for 2012 —E-CEgE 600 7,657 2,400 - 5 10,713
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥k M ot (BB

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 —F——F+—-HA=+—H

12. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EES(FEEBEABE)MESR
(KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) AND ESHEES (&)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(a) Emoluments of directors (key management () EES(XFEEBAE)HME
personnel) (Continued) (%)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and  Discretionary Share-based scheme

allowances bonus payments  contributions Total

HRELE RINEH
Name of director B Be e RE Mig7Ea V] AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
AT AT AT BT BT AT

Year ended 31 BE_Z--f
December 2011 tZB=1-H
Executive directors HrEs
Mr. LEE Yuen Fat FREGE - 2,529 418 2 12 2,961
Dr. KEUNG Wing Ching LKL - 2111 348 2 12 2473
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EKBEE - 1,329 250 1 12 1,592
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan ~ BiZS %4 - 1,365 181 1 12 1,559
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. SUN Kai Lit, Clifess, b TRRNZL%E ats - £ T80 150 - - - - 150
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok as, M+, )b E BB S Togs w - £ T8L 150 - - - - 150
Mr. YEOW Hoe Ann, John KAz LA 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Andrew LOOK EEiE 150 - - - - 150
Total for 2011 ZE—E85 600 7334 1,197 6 48 9,185
There were no arrangements under which a director FAMEBEESREXRERNEETAHS
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the NZH(ZE——F : ) o

year (2011: nil).
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12.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS
(KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included 4 (2011: 4) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining individual for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out below:

12.

B 75 R M ot (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &t 2 —F——F+ - H=+—

)

EE(FEEEAEIHMER
REHES (&)

(b) EEESHAL
AEENRZE=TALTEELIS
(ZZE——F 4%)EF - BHMN
SHBERLEXH DT - REZE
—E——HF+-_A=+—HI*F
ERTERREFATHMSLOT

2012 2011
—E-——fF —2——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances 7K 3 Bj & 7 B 1,046 991
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 400 112
Share-based payments LARR HE 45 & 2 518 - 1
Retirement benefits scheme RIRTE A ET B 3R

contributions 14 12
1,460 1,116

The emoluments fell within the following band: e T A TEE :

HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 L&
1,500,0005% 7T

Number of individuals

AE

2012
—E—_—F

2011
—ET——%F

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FR AEEYEREFARSHFAL
SRR VE 73 0 BB AN ok [ B 5 2 1R O 28
B ERNMEEIHNE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 795 ok Y o (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & % — 2

13.

14.

ZF+ZA=+—H

DIVIDENDS

2012
—E——fF

2011

= T——f‘i
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Interim of HK1.60 cents B ERE @R .60/E

(2011: HKO.66 cents) (ZZ——%F : 0.66/81l)

per ordinary share paid 2 R HARR B 14,241 5,861
Proposed final of HK8.3 cents B E EAx8. 3 Il

(2011: final dividend payment of (ZZ2——F A3F Iz REKE)

HK4.3 cents) per ordinary share ZREHRNARE 73,922 38,191
Additional final dividend for the year 4 NZEIN R HARL B - 28

88,163 44,080

EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
Basic earnings per share BREXZEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$125,894,000
(2011: HK$62,820,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 889,114,900 (2011: 886,548,271) in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$125,894,000 (2011: HK$62,820,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 891,374,470 (2011:
891,277,015), being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 889,114,900 (2011: 886,548,271) in issue during the
year used in the basic earnings per share calculation plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,259,570 (2011:
4,728,744) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of the share options outstanding at the end
of the reporting period.
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JE 15 B9 %% A1 #9125,894,000/8 7t (= =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE L D)
ﬁ&&%ﬁﬁ & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z = & —A=

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold  Plantand  Computer office Motor Construction
Leasehold land  Buildingsimprovements  machinery ~ equipment equipment  vehicles in progress Total
B
il Br4E
HELH BE NEEE BERRE  SHRE RELNERG hE  EEIR Eh
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  MKSTO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AT FEL AT AT AT FET AT AT AT
Cost o valuation BAYfE
At 1 January 2011 RZF-——%-f-A 51,484 150,663 45,25 349,529 6,576 5,668 10,930 24,994 645,09
Transfer £l - - 160 - - = - (160) -
Additions AE = 140 3979 12,891 2915 593 199 43,902 64,619
Surplus on revaluation BfhR4 85,63 - - - - - - - 85,623
Depreciation eliminated against cost ~ WAL A % & (4.427) - - - - - - = (.427)
Disposallrie off e /HE - (5 (156) (2474) (29) (45) (1,679 = (4,384)
Exchange difference EXZR 1,804 6,570 1,335 12,801 31 189 m 2107 25,136
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—5+Zf=1-H
and 1 January 2012 R-E--%-f-H 134,484 157,368 50,570 31,7713 9,497 6,405 9,723 70,843 811,663
Transfer g - 60,824 2,549 - - - - (63,373) -
Additions AE - 14,439 15,094 90,881 198 75 33 30,129 151,139
Surplus on revaluation LR 14,421 - - - - - - - 14421
Depreciation eliminated against cost IR ETTE (3,399) - - - - - - = (3,399)
Disposalwrite off e/ - - 0) (4.218) (189) (179) (335) = (4,944)
Exchange difference EiZE 1,39 2782 n 45719 15 54 65 511 9872
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZE+-A=F-H 146,900 235413 68,662 464,015 9,521 6,355 9,776 38110 978,752
Accumulated depreciation ZitR
At 1 January 2011 R-F-—£-f-A 3,040 24,069 13,593 151,469 5,553 3,867 6,566 - 208,157
Charge for the year L 250 6I4 88 W 1508 608 108 - SN
Disposaliwrite off e /i - 5 - (1,943) (18) (45) (1,903) = (3,914)
Adjustment on revaluation EffE (4.427) - - - - - - = (8,427)
Exchange difference EiZE 136 1,165 404 4983 7 139 153 - 6,967
At 31 December 2011 RZF-—F+ZA=1-H
and 1 January 2012 R-E--%-f-H - 31,933 22,841 192,145 7,070 4,569 6,024 - 264,582
Charge for the year R 3,367 3948 13,581 39423 889 557 1,528 - 63,293
Disposaliwite off e /i - - M) (3,131) (170 (174) (30 - (3,800)
Adjustment on revaluation EffE (3399) - - - - - - = (3,399)
Exchange difference EizE 3 434 206 1902 13 8 43 - 2,693
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—8+-A=1-H - 36,315 36,625 230,339 7802 4,995 1,293 - 323,369
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZF+-A=1-F 146900 199,098 32,037 233676 1,719 1,360 2,483 38,110 655,383
At 31 December 2011 WZE-—FTZA=1-F 134484 125435 27729 180,628 24 1836 3699 70843 547,081
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 ¥k M ot (BB

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—=—F+=H=4+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - MR RXE (E)
(Continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as EMBEAKNASEEZATAOT -
follows:
At 31 December 2012 R-—ZE——-—F+=-HA=+—H

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold  Plantand  Computer office Motor Construction

Leasehold land  Buildingsimprovements  machinery  equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
B
i BEXE
BELH BF DR BERRE  GERE RULERR RE  RRIR fit
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000

T o~ T~ T~ Tt~ T~ T~ TH~ g T~
AT FET AT TE7 AT FET AT TE7 T

A cost WA - 3B 68662 464,015 9,521 6,355 9,776 38110 831,852

At valuation WiEE 146,900 - - - - - - - 146900
146900 235413 68,660 464,015 9,521 6,355 9776 38,110 978752

At 31 December 2011 R-—ZE——+=-_HA=+—H

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold ~ Plantand  Computer office Motor ~ Construction

Leaseholdland ~ Buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress

i
BELH BY  MRKE BRERE  EERR RHOERE nE RRIE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKST000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'O000

o e e e e e e e
FEr AT AT AT FEr AT AT AT

At cost WA - 157368 505710 372,773 9497 6,405 9723 70883 677,179
At veluation Sk 134,484 - - - - - - - 13448
134,484 157,368 50,570 31,773 9,497 6,405 9,723 70,843 811,663
The Group’s leasehold land was revalued at 31 December 2012 REFR-_E——F+-_A=+—HEK
and 31 December 2011 on the open market value basis by —E——E+-A=+—BRAETY
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar BESEE S AR EY2HEM

properties by an independent surveyor.

RXHNTHEINBRER
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land would have
been approximately HK$47,734,000 (2011: HK$48,861,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged
as security for the Group’s banking facilities (including finance
leases) amounted to approximately HK$42,075,000 (2011:
HK$55,013,000).

The carrying amount of plant and machinery held by the Group
under finance leases amounted to approximately HK$9,957,000
(2011: HK$30,039,000).

The Group's leasehold land is analysed as follows:

15.

B 7% 35 % Y £ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z = &

—FEF+ZA= =]
W WBREE(E)

AEFRELTHNEEEY A
47,734,000 0 (=& — — F :
48,861,000/ 7T) + BB RFTITE
Ko E BB R o

AEBEREEAE#42,075,000/8 7T (=
T ——4 : 55,013,000/ 7T) B4 - 1
REBEEHEAAEBRITEE (B
FERERE) K -
AEBERBERMEAERARESNEREE
B 5 849,957,000 0 (=& ——4F :
30,039,000/ 7T)

AEBBEELHEINMAT

2012 2011
—E——fF —FE——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
In Hong Kong: NS
Medium-term leases FREIEE 27,300 19,684
Outside Hong Kong: RE BRI
Medium-term leases RHIEE 119,600 114,800
146,900 134,484
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. HHEARINKRE

Company
AT
2012 2011
—E-=F —F—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Unlisted investment, at cost ELEMIRE (RKAFE) 10,000 10,000
Financial guarantee contracts BEERELD 18,933 11,590
28,933 21,590
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free e/ FETFT B A B I8 AL - ¢

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BN A % [ e 8 5RO o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. HHBEARIMNKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as WRZB——F+-A=+—H0 KBRQ
follows: AIFFIBEMT :

Percentage of
ownership
interest/
voting power/
profit sharing
EihEs/ RER/
BN E R

Direct Indirect

Issued and fully
paid up

share capital/
registered capital

Place and date
of incorporation

Principal
activities

AR LR IREHK

BRORAERE/ERER

EE 3

Ka Shui (Holdings) Company Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 369,093 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EhEEERAT EBRAES of US$0.1 each REER
((RBEXES]) 369,0938 REE0.1XT L
LRk
Ample Wealth Developments Limited BV 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
ELERARAT EREAHE \REREFEIZT LAR REER
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Manufacture of plastic injection
Company Limited &b HK$ 1 each products and components
BLCEHRBAERAR 10,000 BREE1 AT 2 EEEBISERREHH
Lak
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 100% Sale of zinc, magnesium and
EhERERAT Bk HK$100 each aluminium alloy die casting
1008 B IR EE100B T2 and plastic injection products
ER& and components
HEH ZREAEEEN
BRIEERRERH
MG Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of magnesium
Company Limited H HK$150,000,000 and aluminium alloy die casting
gle xR (R ER AR FEE75150,000,000% 7T products and components
HEREEE LA RE
EmREBH
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital HK$ - 100% Inactive
Company Limited H 160,000,000 and paid up LEXHK

FRMR(EMNERAR

capital HK$160,000,000

(2011: HK$140,000,000)
& 7160,000,000%8 7T &

24 7160,000,0005 7T

(ZZ——1% 140,000,000 )
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16.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows (continued):

Elegant Shine Investments Limited

EEREAERAA

Ample Wealth Property
Developments (Huizhou) Limited

EENERE (BMBERA

Ka Shui Technology Limited
R HRARDA

Wing Yu (Far East) Industries
Company Limited
K (BR)EXERAH

Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and
Plastic Manufactory
Company Limited
BEMmARLEEHERERAR

Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou)
Company Limited
RERBEEMNERA

INNOKA Company Limited
(formerly known as Cheong Fai
(International) Steel
Company Limited)

INNOKA Company Limited (7%
SVACTEIE RN )

Place and date
of incorporation

AR =R

BVI

ABRARE

The PRC
i

Hong Kong
6

Hong Kong
&k

The PRC
it

The PRC
HE

Hong Kong
&k

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 7% 35 % Y 5 (1)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z = &

—F+ A= H

HHMEBARINEKRE (&)
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—HB HEA

AFHBOT (&)

Percentage of
ownership
interest/

voting power/

profit sharing

EihEs/ RER/
bRl
Direct Indirect

EE 3

Issued and fully
paid up

share capital/
registered capital

BRORAERE/ERER

1 ordinary share of - 100%
US$1 each
1RERAEBIZTZEBR

Registered capital - 100%
HK$6,800,000
# it & 756,800,000/ 7T

10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%
HK$1 each
10,000 B EE 1A T2
Ak
100,000 ordinary shares of - 100%
HK$1 each
10,000k 8 RAEIETZ
EER
Registered capital - 100%
HK$4,500,000
& 484,500,000/ 7

Registered capital - 100%
HK$20,000,000

4 420,000,000 7T

1 ordinary share of - 100%
HK$1 each
1REREEETLZ

Principal
activities

IREH

Investment holding

REER

Inactive

EEXE

Investment holding

REARK

Provision of surface finishing
treatment services

RERARERS

Provision of surface finishing
treatment services

RERARERE

Sale and manufacture of zinc
and aluminium alloy die casting
products and components

HEREEF R EBRERR
THH

Inactive

LEXH

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 3= BB 45 i B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 R M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as
follows (continued):

HHMEBARINEKRE (&)
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H HEA

AFBOT (&)

Percentage of
ownership
interest/
voting power/ Principal
profit sharing activities

FlhER/ REE/

Tzl IRRH

Direct Indirect

B 553

Issued and fully
paid up
Place and date share capital/
of incorporation registered capital
EMEIEERAS BRTRMRERA/EMER
Ka Fung Industrial Technology The PRC Registered capital
(Huizhou) Company Limited i HK$2,000,000
RETEMR (M ARAA 1 72,000,000 7
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of
SHERHERAT BA HK$1 each
REREEIETL
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory The PRC Registered capital
(Shenzhen) Company Limited o HK$40,000,000
(2011: HK$10,000,000)
EheBEm (R ERAA 1 4 440,000,007 70

(ZZF——%:10,000,000% )

Alphalite Incorporation USA 100 ordinary shares of
S US$1 each
100 BFRERBIETZ
L&k
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA 500,000 ordinary shares
E3E of US$0.01 each
500,0008% &R A E
0.01E T2 £/

MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Ka Shui
Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited, Ample Wealth Property
Developments (Huizhou) Limited, Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou)
Company Limited, Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou)
Company Limited, Ka Shui Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen)
Company Limited and Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic
Manufactory Company Limited are wholly-foreign owned
enterprises established in the PRC.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 523m BB FERE A R A 7]
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- 100% Sale and manufacture of products
and components with
plastic contents
HEREESERHH2EDR

Tt

- 100% Trading and marketing
of light emitting plasma
lighting products
fit Zlight emitting plasmafi 8
EmZEaRmsRE

- 100% Sale and manufacture of
zinc and magnesium alloy die
casting products and
components
HEREERREACBE
B R

- 100% Trading and marketing of
light emitting plasma
lighting products
1 Zlight emitting plasmaf? B
EmlBHRTAHE
- 100% Marketing of zinc,
magnesium and aluminium alloy
die casting and plastic injection
products and components
tEd EREFCEEREE
AEEMR B2 TSR

B2XBRCRIDBRAA - BiRFHR
(B BRRAR - BEMERRIE (FM)
BRQF mEMZEMBRAF
FE2TEMRGEM BRAAF  Bhe
BEm ORI AR AR REMMAKEE
TEHNARERARHNFBEMKLZIN
BEELE -



17.

18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5w M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

FELEMBRAR RKAFTE)
ME R

Unlisted equity, at cost
Impairment loss

17.

AtHEEREE
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—=2—=fF —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHET
8,303 8,303
(8,303) (8,303)

Unlisted equity is carried at cost. The investee company has
ceased business and the management has made full impairment
loss for the investment.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2011, included in deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment was a deposit of HK$2.1 million
paid to a related company, Chit Shun Machinery Limited, for
the acquisition of machinery. No such deposit was paid as at 31
December 2012.

18.

FLETRARETIERAAR - HIRE
RRAIERIFTEBREEEEHILIARE
EH 2 BURERE -

ENBEYE HBEBRREZ
®e

R—TB——F+-_A=+—8  sENR
BEWE BERZEZERSOERE
B #3231 A — 5 B 8 A R R AR A R
BRABIEZ Z&&#12,100,0008 7T
R-E——F+_-_A=+—HIEEBER
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

19.

20.

INVENTORIES 19. FE&

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Raw materials JR# K 119,572 116,801
Consumables supplies and spare parts &+ ma M F =26 ¢4 10,380 10,430
Work in progress & 67,368 52,907
Finished goods UK fm 59,289 20,638
256,609 200,776
Less: Allowance for inventories W FEEE (2,934) (3,494)
253,675 197,282

Because of the change in the market condition of the Group’s
products during the year, there was an increase in the net
realisable value of certain inventories. As a result, allowance made
in prior years against the inventories of HK$560,000 (2011: HK$
nil) was reversed.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

During the year 2012, the Group discounted part of its trade
debtors with full recourse to financial institutions. In the event of
default by the debtors, the Group is obliged to pay the financial
institutions the amount in default. Interest is charged at 2.16%
on the proceeds received from the financial institutions until the
date the debtors pay. The Group is therefore exposed to the risks
of credit losses and late payment in respect of the discounted
debts.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 523m BB FERE A R A 7]
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20.

HMRENAEEESOTSEEED -
FEERNTEIFEEM - FUY
B - BRI S B 560,000
T(=E——f ) WRE -

BZEWRE

R-FB——F AKERASBMEERR
EREZT2BRENEDEHEKRERR -
WEBBEBARY AEEAND R
BESXNENZE ARMNSREEH
BEESNBEHFIAN216%HE - &
ERMBEBANZERR - At - &
SERBREBARERRRARERR
TR



20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The discounting transactions do not meet the requirements in
HKAS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted trade debts. At 31 December 2012, trade
debtors of HK$32,800,000 (2011: nil) continue to be recognised
in the Group’s financial statements even though they have been
legally transferred to the financial institutions. The proceeds of
the discounting transactions are included in borrowings as asset-
backed financing (note 25) until the trade debts are collected or
the Group settles any losses suffered by the financial institutions.
At 31 December 2012, the asset-backed financing liability
amounted to HK$32,800,000 (2011: nil). Up to the date of these
financial statements, the whole amount has been fully settled.

Because the trade debts have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the trade debts.

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally ranged from 30 to 90 days (2011: 30
to 90 days) after end of the month in which the invoices issued.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. The ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, and net
of allowance, is stated as follows:

20.

R EEL A ;%'T)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

——F+=-H=

B 5% EWE (F)
BB R 5 I THA B G RERE39
FAWRERBEBEENRT BB

AEBERBUREZEZFEBERTEERN
AZHBRARKREER R-T——F+=

B=+—H BEHEHCEKAELEET
% @ - 32,800,000 T (=& ——
F o EB)2BPRRNEREENRLEE
MEREPER MR ZHE K
BEABEBKMRE (M F25) 5 AE
E HEZzUEEZESEERAEBMAEES
MEBEAZHEMEBERX R —=F
+-A=+—HB EEEHREEEA
32,800,000 T (=& ——4F : &) - &
EAMBEHREBE  2PLBEBRE

=E=
/8 °

BHERL/EZEET A
BEEREZFEZEEN

-ﬁﬂi

AEEHRZFNEZHERREIERRH -

EER-—RBRNAHEREZE ALERED
30290H (=ZZ——%F : 30890H) - &
UEFHRERSEERE - NEER

JUEAiTﬂE T“H&BE/AZETﬁfgﬁiT i o 78

HEHBERTEHRN ERNERBH
LTTIHDB%%%E’\J%%EWEE: BREC

Mo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. BEEEWFIE(E)
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days ZEF30H 171,809 133,472
31 to 60 days 31£260H 175,295 66,535
61 to 90 days 61290H 85,620 42,282
91 to 180 days 91£180H 52,473 29,209
Over 180 days 180H A E 844 654
486,041 272,152
At 31 December 2012, an allowance was made for estimated RZEBE—ZF+-_HA=+—80 B
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$1,984,000 AW E 2 B 5 ' W RIE fE 8
(2011: HK$1,984,000). B 491,984,0008 L (=& ——F :

1,984,000/ 7T) °

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: B 5 W GRIA R 2 £k ¢
2012 2011
=F—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET FAET
At 1 January n—A—H 1,984 2,322
Allowance for the year charged AR A FEEE
to profit or loss 559 558
Amount written off during the year 7R 6 [ 6 - (276)
Reversal [o] 43 (559) (635)
Exchange differences FE i Z 5 - 15
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H” 1,984 1,984

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 32 im B B 452 f% B R A 7

104
Annual Report 2012 - —ZT— —F &3}



20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z =&

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately
HK$57,333,000 (2011: HK$56,414,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there are no recent history of default. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables, based on the due date, is as follows:

20.

B 75 #R R ()

—Ff+ZH=+—H

B S rWRIE (&)
R—_E—=F+=—_A=Z+—8"
#4957,333,0008 0 (=& — — & ¢
56,414,000/ 7T) KZ 5 FE W RIE 7 6 2
BERERE ZEREHEARZHFELT

BHEARSNBYRFPEH -BHES
FEUGRIBRBR A A RE DT ¢

2012

T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Up to 3 months 318 A AR 56,426 55,261
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 721 650
Over 6 months 618 A LA £ 186 503
57,333 56,414

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables is
denominated in the following currencies:

BoRRABREEDATIEERE

fir ¢

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$"000

FET FEIT

HK$ BT 37,362 46,783
usD ETT 425,885 206,578
RMB AR 21,686 17,385
Others HAb 1,108 1,406
486,041 272,152
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 R M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

REHE

2012 2011

—E-——fF —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Zinc forward contracts HIRIA Y 512 (260)
Interest rate swap and currency I 4 HA % 3= R

forward contracts INEE # 80 =

Currency forward contracts mEINEE L - (345)

592 (605)

The above financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for
trading.

The zinc forward contracts have maturity periods of
approximately 4 months (2011: 2 years). The fair values of the
derivatives are determined by reference to the market forward
price of zinc at year end and the fixed commodity price of zinc
stated in the contracts.

In addition, the Group has entered into interest rate swap and
forward contracts to sell RMB and buy USD. The fair values of
the derivatives are determined with reference to the HIBOR plus
a spread, and the market forward exchange rate at year end and
the fixed forward rates stated in the contracts.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 32 im B B 452 f% B R A 7
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5w M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
The notional amounts of zinc, RMB and USD to be acquired or
sold under forward contracts and the notional principal for the
interest rate swap are set out below:

Zinc forward contracts HRAEH

Interest rate swap and currency F =B LR EINES &
forward contracts

Currency forward contracts EHIINES L

21.

BEAFEFABEEZEREN SR
BE /(Af\) (#)
RBIEAOBRESHEZHE AR
BMRETEELBRAEEHZZERN
SHINMAT

2012 2011
Notional Notional

amount amount

EREH 2ETH

USD2,156,000 USD1,178,000

Principal of -
HK$48,000,000
for the interest
rate swap
and sales of
RMB26,000,000
in exchange for
USD4,000,000
ANEEHERE
48,000,00058 T &
HEARY
26,000,000
1#:E14,000,0003% T

- Sales of
RMB382,500,000

in exchange for
USD60,000,000
HEARE
382,500,000#2 52
60,000,0003 7T

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCE AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had pledged bank deposits
in RMB amounting to HK$12,285,000 with fixed interest rate of
3.3% per annum to secure banking facilities as set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. There was no pledged
bank deposits as at 31 December 2012.

22.

BIHEEITER  BRFIRT
FRERTRE LA
RZF——F+=ZA=+—H &&=
HEEEAARBIRITIF12,285,000
B REENEAESFIIEFE - B
ERRA WIS MR W27 RTT R E
WER R E——F+-_HA=+—H
W4 B IRIT K o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

22.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCE AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had placed a restricted
bank deposit in RMB amounting to HK$2,457,000 which served
as a guarantee in favour of the custom office of Kunshan City,
the PRC. The deposit was arranged at floating interest rate of
3.1% per annum and therefore was subject to cash flow interest
rate risk. The deposit was released during the year ended 31
December 2012.

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.5% per annum (2011: 0.01% to 0.5%
per annum). Included in the bank and cash balances of the
Group is approximately HK$69,340,000 (2011: HK$98,173,000)
denominated in RMB.

Under the PRC’'s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are denominated
in the following currencies:

22.

SEFRITER - BRFRT
FRERTRREAESR (H)

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H K&
B % B R 5 A R 8 R 17 17 32,457,000
BT YEAM R BRI TSR LM E
R ZEFFIRTEINENZBHA R
B AUBFERSRAERER -ZEF
FREBE—_T——F+_A=+—H1t
FEOKMER -

BITHEEEEF00IERISE (= F
——F : BF0.01EZ05E) ) Z8 7
KHREA S - EAREBEMNRITRRG &
g+ 4969,340,000/8 7T = A A R B
BE(=Z——4% :98,173,000/8 L) °

R AR B A CHONEE B 1R 1) B CHE B
BERMNEEERE)  NEEAEBE
RERRIMNERBHRITAARE LR
SNEE

RITRBS S 2 REEA TS A
By :

Group Company
RE AR T

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F —E——F —FT——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
HK$ & TT 58,572 23,890 99 261
usD ETT 6,724 39,961 - =
RMB AR 69,340 98,173 - -
Others HAh 607 2,667 - =
135,243 164,691 99 261
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ .& (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = — —A=+—H
23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EZEMARE
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of B SEMNRIBRNE BB ERREKR D
receipt of goods, is as follows: M :
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FrETT
0 to 30 days ZFF30H 104,811 60,348
31 to 60 days 31260H 112,475 78,525
61 to 90 days 61290H 68,365 10,484
91 to 180 days 91£180H 32,535 3,636
Over 180 days 180H A £ 1,857 642
320,043 153,635
The carrying amount of the Group's trade payables is AEEESEMNRIBEEREMENL NS
denominated in the following currencies: y=%-X(vi
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FBT
HK$ BT 10,388 7,339
usD ETT 89,776 44,215
RMB AR 218,064 100,206
Others Hh 1,815 1,875
320,043 153,635
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 795 ok Y o (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

24. DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 24, EBERBEQRNRE
Particulars of the amount due to a related company are as ERNBEQARREFBLOT ¢
follows:

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Chit Shun Machinery Limited AR H AR A A 3,428 723
The amount due to a related company is of trade nature and is FENEEARINRBEAERLRE 228
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Mr. Lee has BEEREEEHESZ - ZhEREBEN
joint control in the related company. AR EREH -
25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITEXN
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as RITEZWETESITOT :
follows:

Group
REE
2012 2011

—E2-=F —F——%

HK3$'000 HK$°000
FHET TET

Current liabilities REEE

Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —F AN HEED

repayment within one year RITERE D 228,635 177,538
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FZIHEENEE
repayment after one year which RERE R GHORT
contains a repayment on demand BERE S
clause 64,140 79,258
Asset-backed financing (note b) BEERFRE (fEb) 32,800 =
325,575 256,796
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25.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE
(

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z = &

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the bank
borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost.
None of the portion of bank borrowings due for repayment after
one year which contain a repayment on demand clause that is

25.

D)
ﬁ%#&i‘%ﬁﬁﬂ &)

—A=

SRAT Fm(%n)
SRRITHN (REARER RN R
Ew\) mﬂ;ﬁﬁﬁkzsmﬁ » AR —F 1% F

HEENEE z?i%“éx Téf‘z{l REHEAR
MEBABEMNRTERBY BRI AN —

classified as current liabilities is expected to be settled within one

year.

At 31 December 2012, interest-bearing bank loans were due for
repayment as follows:

FRBE-

m:;—:¢+—H:+—H-
O

EREBRTT

B HAE

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Portion of bank borrowings due for ~ ZBR—F RNEIHEZED
repayment within one year RITEREB S - 12,285
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRNE|HEE
repayment within one year which (BEREREREGITO
contains a repayable on demand RITE D
clause 228,635 165,253
Asset — backed financing (note b) BERKITFE (WD) 32,800 =
261,435 177,538
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —F & 2| HEE
repayment after one year which (BERERERBGRORT
contains a repayment on demand BRE D (Hita)
clause (note a):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFEZA 38,003 39,244
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBERAFZRN 23,754 36,330
After 5 years RFE & 2,383 3,684
64,140 79,258
325,575 256,796
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 5 ¥Rk M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

25.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note a:  The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any
repayment on demand clause.

Note b:  The asset-backed financing represents the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which do not meet the de-
recognition requirement in HKAS 39. The corresponding assets
are included in trade receivables (note 20).

Six (2011: one) of the bank facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand. In addition,
certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether the
Group has complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations.

The Company regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
bank borrowings and does not consider it probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the
Company continues to meet these requirements. Further details
of the Company’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
5(d). As at 31 December 2012 none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2011: nil).

All bank borrowings were arranged at floating interest rate and
no (2011: HK$12,285,000) bank loan is arranged at fixed interest
rate. The range of the interest rates per annum at 31 December
was as follows:

2RIk

Floating rate =
Eifa] e

Fixed rate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is denominated in
the following currencies:

25.

RITE R ()

—A=1+—H

RITEFREENL T EE R EEM

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 270,353 223,078

usD X7 55,222 21,433

RMB AR - 12,285

Total FE 325,575 256,796
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. EEMRYRIE

Obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:

Minimum |
paymen

BEAER

2012
—E—_F
HK$°000
FET

—T——F

BMEBOAENERBOT :

Group
AEE

ease

ts

2011 2012
—E-——fF
HK$’000
FET

HK$°000
FET

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REEERRE

2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FrETT

Within one year or containing —FARBERENR
a repayment on demand clause B Z R 4,076 7,284 3,978 7,089
In the second to fifth years, E_FEEERF
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 1,351 5,422 1,330 5,305
5,427 12,706 5,308 12,394
Less: Future finance lease charges Ji @ KRR E AL H (119) (312) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations  FA#) & IEIR(E 5,308 12,394 5,308 12,394
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : 1218 A A E| B4 &
within 12 months or RIEBEHBEHRENRK
containing a repayment B& 2 &R
on demand clause (shown (M AERBERE)
under current liabilities) (3,978) (7,089)
Amount due for settlement after  121& A 1% 2| Hi 45 & 718
12 months 1,330 5,305
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 75 ¥R Y e (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

26.

27.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and machinery
under finance leases. The average lease term is 3 to 4 years.

At 31 December 2012, leases of approximately HK$5,308,000
(2011: HK$12,394,000) were arranged at floating rates, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. None (2011: 2)
of the lease has a repayable on demand clause.

The interest rates per annum are analysed as follows:

26.

BMEMEORE (&)

AEBNBRREAREENTARER
ETHR®RE THOHEFHRIZAF -

R—_FE—=—F+-_A=+—8 -
495,308,000 0 (=& — — &F :
12,394,000 JT) #Y 70 40 12 )% B FI) 2= &F
B HMASBEEAERSRENER
B o REMRN(ZZE——F : 2) B 5%
DREE 26K »

FMEDHFMAT

Floating rate leases FENFI R L
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement has
been entered into for contingent rental payments.

All obligations under finance leases are denominated in HK$.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s title to the leased assets at the carrying amount of
approximately HK$9,957,000 (2011: HK$30,039,000).

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately HK$708 million (2011: HK$461 million),
which were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$326
million (2011: HK$260 million). These banking facilities were
secured by the following:

(a) corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Group;

(b) the Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$12 million as at 31 December 2011 had been released
during the year 2012;

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 52 BB £2RE A IR A 7
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EEREEOAEHNETAHE -

AEENBMEAOAZEALE AN
HELEEMBREAER BREHE
# 49,957,000 0 (=& — — F -
30,039,000/5 7T ) ©

RITEE
R-B——F+_A=+—H0 KA&E
Al B) MR 1TIE B 49/4708,000,0007 7T
—T——4F :461,000,000/87T) * M2
B) A E A4 326,000,000 T (= F
— —4F : 260,000,000/ 70) ° It F R 1T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 795 e M 7 & (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 =& — — 4

BANKING FACILITIES (Continued)
(c) a property situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group;

(d) lessors’ title to the leased assets under finance leases;

(e) guarantee from the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrations Region Under Special Loan Guarantee

Scheme.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group, and the movements thereon, during the year:

27. SRTEE(E)

—A=1+—H

(0 AEEEEN—HBBME:

d HEABRAREEOLENEE

B &

() FBARHIT

IR I8 B E 5 Bl B AR

R & THREHIELR -

28. EEHEEE

AT RAESERFAEERNTIRIRT

HMREEREARES :

Revaluation
of leasehold
land
FHELH
EBEEM
HK$'000
FET

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

Total

IEBEITE
HK$'000
FET

e
HK$°000

TET

At 1 January 2011 R-E——%—HF—8 - 2,388 2,388
Charge to equity for the year B ANB=INR (#:2710) 16,878 = 16,878
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+=_A=+—HEK

1 January 2012 —T——%—HF—H 16,878 2,388 19,266
Charge to equity for the year B F M = bR 2,978 = 2,978
Credit to profit or loss for the year RERNARKRZE Bz (A1:£70)

(note 10) 121) (1,857) (1,978)
Exchange realignment bE W 5 & 190 - 190
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 19,925 531 20,456
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% = =

28.

—#+=A=+-A

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$42,929,000 (2011: HK$32,434,000) and deductible
temporary differences in respect of the pre-operating expenses
of the PRC subsidiaries of HK$790,000 (2011: HK$779,000)
which are available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of these tax losses and
deductible temporary differences due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$42,929,000 (2011: HK$32,434,000) will expire
as follows:

28.

EEPIEAE (&)
R-B——F+_A=+—H8 K&EE
B ) B IE E5 842,929,000 T (=
T ——14F 1 32,434,000/8 78) N kA B A
BRARZAXAEREAIINKRER =5
790,000/ 7t (= T — — 4 : 779,000/

JC) Al S AR AOE A o W B Z EFIE
ES%E&T%DB/%EDDE%§§EEEWU5EL%RIE§
B I%ﬂi“ﬁ@ifﬂémﬂmk EEEE
R IAE K8 442,929,000 7T (=
4 1 32,434,0007 1) #5572 T %1 ,Hﬁ & 2|
H -

2012 2011
—E—-C-F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Year 2012 == - 1,779
Year 2013 —ZF—= 1,649 1,649
Year 2014 = — P04 7,198 7,198
Year 2015 —T—hEF 9,870 9,870
Year 2016 —T—RF 11,938 11,938
Year 2017 — T+ 12,274 -
42,929 32,434
At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of undistributed RZE—ZF+ZA=+—08 " HIfB
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have R AR IR A A B i A e 52 T 1R

not been recognised is approximately HK$189,000,000 (2011:
HK$111,000,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ﬁ&&%ﬁﬁ & (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 — —H=+—H
29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 29. MERRENEE
LIABILITIES
Company
ARAF
2012 2011
B —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Financial guarantee contracts BRATEFAENREERED
at fair value 6,213 7,839
Financial guarantee contracts liabilities represents the fair value REERAENBEIERARTNUE THET
of the financial guarantees provided by the Company in favour of LRl EASEARARTNEBE A
certain banks and financial institutions for the banking facilities AR BB HEEETEELR
and obligations under finance leases of the subsidiaries of the BRAEERETEEERNAFEE R
Company at the inception date of the borrowings. As at 31 —E——®+—-_HFA=+—H 17 ES
December 2012, the extent of the facilities granted by the banks R IR 2§ A708,048,000 T (=
and financial institutions amounted to HK$708,048,000 (2011: T — —4F : 449,148,000 7T) © i1 2 B
HK$449,148,000) and the amounts utilised was approximately A I8 A #9325,575,0008 0 (Z & ——
HK$325,575,000 (2011: HK$247,542,000). 247,542,000 7C) °©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 —F——F+—-HA=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. KR
Number of
shares Amount
R EE &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREMENB T E MR
At 1 January 2011, R—E——F—HA—8"
31 December 2011 —E——Ff+-_A=+—HRK
and 31 December 2012 —E——F+=-F=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE. 1B T LB
At 1 January 2011 A—E——%F—HF—H 882,629,400 88,263
Issue of shares upon the exercise AT R T 31T 2 AR
of share options (a) 5,476,000 548
At 31 December 2011 and RZTE——F+_A=+—HEK
1 January 2012 —ET——F—HF—H 888,105,400 88,811
Issue of shares upon the exercise RITEEREMBTZEER
of share options (a) 2,330,000 233
At 31 December 2012 RZT——F+=-A=+—H 890,435,400 89,044
(a) During the year, 2,330,000 (2011: 5,476,000) ordinary (@ REA - ARITEARR A EKRE
shares were issued at HK$0.415 (2011: HK$0.415) per ifl BA0.4158 7 (ZF — — & ¢
share as a result of the exercise of share options of the 0.415% 70) #172,330,0004% (=
Company. T ——4 :5,476,000%) @A °
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEEEREEARNUBRAEE KA
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BRRE MBHETASBEIERER
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of ARG R AR - AN B EE
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains REREAFME o

unchanged from the previous year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 7 = F — =4

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group
has a target net gearing ratio of not more than 30% determined
as the proportion of net debt to equity.

The net gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

30.

ﬂ*#&i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ(%&é)

—A=1+—H

R ()
AEBENEARBERRERERRAS
BHERARAEGEHAARGEDS &
BOBTEAN RERREBAN - AR
AEFFFFEMA —REREE - NE
TRk BEFZREANEAREHEE
BEANAR REBEEFNEH  £5
B 5B IR BB - BITH R R BE E AR
MARBETHERXBELREGER &
NFEBRBEARE AEENBRF
fEELL X (BMER FREERNLE) B
THB#30% ©

RELNFEELERNT

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F# T FET

Debt (a) B 1E(a) 330,883 269,190
Less: Bank and cash balances o RIT R IR & e (135,243) (164,691)
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER - (12,285)
Restricted bank balance BRHIERITER - (2,457)

Net debt BEFE 195,640 89,757
Equity (b) # 7= (b) 815,774 724,456
Net debt to equity ratio B FER B an b 3 24.0% 12.4%

(a) Debt is defined as bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases, as detailed in notes 25 to 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is

to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange and have a public
float of at least 25% of its shares.

(@ BEBIRAESRTERRBEMR
WAEE  EEFREREAMT
KM TE25%26 o

(b) HEEBERAEERBEERRRHE -

AN M — R INEIE 2 B AR TE BRI

HRBRMz EmREET LR

25% 2 RARFFIE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 —F——F+—-HA=+—H

31. RESERVES 31. f##E
(@) Group (@) #*%£M®
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements RNEE R B IE R AHE g
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of R E2HERERRGEERE
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of BREY o

changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) AATF
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
REEE BRERE REEEF my
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2011 RZZ—F—Hf—H 199,751 11,779 2,150 213,680
Issue of shares upon the TR EE AR
exercise of share options B gak 1,725 - - 1,725
Recognition of share-based RARBEEE 2K
payments - 27 - 27
Forfeiture of share options R 2 B P - (10,605) 10,605 =
Exercise of share options 1118 2 B PR 584 (584) = =
Profit for the year F N A - - 82,571 82,571
Dividends paid BEfRRE = = (34,254) (34,254)
At 31 December 2011 R-T——%
+=-A=+—H 202,060 617 61,072 263,749
At 1 January 2012 R-—E——F—H—H 202,060 617 61,072 263,749
Issue of shares upon the RITERE AR R 1T
exercise of share options 2 ERR 734 - - 734
Exercise of share options 118 2 AR 246 (246) = =
Profit for the year F R A - - 132,777 132,777
Dividends paid BERKRE = = (52,460) (52,460)
At 31 December 2012 RZB—_%
—A=+—8H 203,040 371 141,389 344,800
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RESERVES (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their
par value per share. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate of
(i) the nominal value of the shares issued by Ka
Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited on
18 January 2005 in exchange for the business of
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory, an unincorporated
partnership established in Hong Kong and
controlled by Mr. Lee and; (ii) the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
for the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui (Holdings)
Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of
minority interests in Ka Fung Metal Manufactory
Company Limited and Ka Fung Metal Manufactory
acquired by the Group.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 3(c)(iii)
to the financial statements.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 3(q) to the financial statements.

31.

@ (&)

(c)

GRS
()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

31.

32.

RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve comprises the PRC statutory
reserve fund which is non-distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations
for foreign investment enterprises in the PRC,
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules and
regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until
the accumulated total of the statutory reserve
fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make
up prior year losses or applied in conversion into
capital.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for leasehold land in note 3(d) to
the financial statements.

(vii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme
Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to written resolutions of all the shareholders passed
on 2 June 2007, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that eligible participants had made or may make to the Group.
Eligible participants include (i) employees, directors, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors
of or contractors to the Group or a company in which the Group
holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”),
or (ii) companies beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 2 June 2007 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.
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32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 g{ 2 — &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme or any other schemes
involving the grant of options over shares of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue at anytime. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at anytime. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open for
acceptance by the eligible participant concerned for a period of
not less than three business days from the date of offer, except
for any offer which is made within the last three business days of
the life of this scheme, the offer shall remain open for acceptance
on a business day by the eligible participant concerned for a
period of not longer than the remaining life of this scheme. An
offer cannot be accepted by an eligible participant who ceases to
qualify as an eligible participant after the offer has been made.
No offer shall be capable of or open for acceptance after the
expiry of 10 years for the effective date of this scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period as determined by directors at each grant and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the
offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 R M ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 32.
Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

ategory of grantee

EEARH

Executive directors

BTES

Executive directors

H7ES

Executive directors

H11ES

Senior staff

BEEE

Senior staff

RABE

Senior staff

BRER

Junior staff

NREE

Junior staff

HEEE

Junior staff
IR A

Date of grant

Ri A%

13 March 2008
“EE\F=f1=H

13 March 2008
“ZZ\FZAT=H

13 March 2008
“TR\FZATZA

13 March 2008
“ZZ)\k=A+=H

13 March 2008
“TE\EZA1ZH

13 March 2008
“TE\5=A+=H

13 March 2008
“TT\FZATEA

13 March 2008
“ZZ)\k=A+=H

13 March 2008
“TR/\FA128

Vesting date

BRAK

13 March 2009
“EENF=A+=A

13 March 2010
“5-FE=A+=H

13 March 2011
“Z-——FZftZH

13 March 2009
“SENEZR+ZH

13 March 2010
“F-TE-f12R

13 March 2011
ZF--FZATZA

13 March 2009
“EENE=AT=R

13 March 2010
Z3-TE=A+=A

13 March 2011
“E-—%=A1=A

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited - 32 im B B 452 f% B R A 7
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Exercise period

s

13 March 2009 to 12 March 2018

AR R 5 2 51A ()
8 B 5T Y (480)
B A ERIEENT

“EENECAT=RE-E-\E=f1zB

13 March 2010 to 12 March 2018

“E-ZE-A+ZHRE-F-\EZAt=H

13 March 2011 to 12 March 2018

—E-——F-B+t=HE-E-N\5=Bt+=H

13 March 2009 to 12 March 2018

CEENEZAT=RE_E-\E=At=H

13 March 2010 to 12 March 2018

—E-ZE-ft=HE-E-\5=ht+-H

13 March 2011 to 12 March 2018

“T——#Zf+=RE-F-\E=At-H

13 March 2009 to 12 March 2018

“EEAE=Rt=RE-E-\F=BtZH

13 March 2010 to 12 March 2018

“E-FE-A+ZRE-E-\EZAt=H

13 March 2011 to 12 March 2018

Number

Fair of share

value at Exercise options
grant date price outstanding
RELEH i 83
ZATE & BREHR
HKS HKS

AT AT

0.13 0.415 540,000

0.13 0415 405,000

0.13 0.415 405,000

013 0.415 71,200

0.13 0.415 216,200

0.13 0415 416,600

0.1 0.415 429,600

0.12 0415 377,400

0.12 0.415 399,000

—Z-——E=-f+t=HE-E-N\5=Bt+=H



32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 75 R P e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair values of the options were determined at the dates of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values
of shares options:

Exercise price HK$0.415
Expected life 3.5-6.5 years
Expected volatility 55.42%
Dividend yield 5.25%

Risk-free interest rate 2.005%-2.176%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of share prices of comparable companies with shares
listed on the Stock Exchange and engaged in the similar business
of the Group. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on the Group’s best estimate, for the effects
of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The fair value of the options will be amortised over the vesting
period on a straight-line basis and expensed in the profit or loss.

32.

LUR AR 2 7E (&)

8 B A BT Y (480)
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THBRAR T R EAT(E

TEE 0.415/8 7T
TEETF 3.5-6.5%F
TEFT K 18 55.42%
i B2 B X 5.25%
4= [ B2 ) = 2.005%-2.176%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 32. URBEAHEZXRHE(E)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) AR & (E)
Details of the share options outstanding under the Share Option FARBRES ST 2 = AR 176008 Ak
Scheme during the year are as follows: BT
2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——F
Weighted Weighted
Number of EYIE Number of average
share options exercise price  share options  exercise price
R INHE T
BREYE TEE  BREHE T8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning FPRTE
of the year 5,590,000 0.415 11,242,000 0.415
Forfeited during the year FREU - (176,000) 0.415
Exercised during the year FRTE (2,330,000) 0.415 (5,476,000) 0.415
Outstanding at the end FRRTE
of the year 3,260,000 0.415 5,590,000 0.415
Exercisable at the end FRAITE
of the year 3,260,000 0.415 5,590,000 0.415
Number of share options exercised during the year was 2,330,000 FKNH2,330,0000 RIEREITE(ZT
(2011: 5,476,000). The options outstanding at the end of the — —%F : 5,476,000) ° FRAITHEEK
year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.3 BRI R sp S 4 FEHI A5 3F (=
years (2011: 6.3 years). T——F :6.3F) °
Save as disclosed above, no further options were granted under B EXFIIREESI  MERBEREST
the Share Option Scheme. B 5% A o] H th B AR A ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE:D)
B %5 ¥R P at (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ZZ —F——F+=-HA=+—H

33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. SERERER
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash flows from operating activities () REEXEKFESEESRE
2012
—E-——F
HK$’000
FET
Profit from operations &5 7 163,999 86,944
Adjustments for: E{’EtﬂTﬁ'J%ﬁ%& :
Interest income PSRN (819) (1,120)
Reversal of allowance for R AR $3 {8 [o] #3%
doubtful debts (559) (635)
Allowance for doubtful debts R BRE & 559 558
Bad debt written off 122 B 1 8 19 72
Impairment on other H th & W BR R (B
receivables - 450
Allowance for inventories GFERE - 2,772
Reversal of allowance for 17 5 5 4 B %
inventories (560) -
Equity-settled share-based A H%& ,%;EU«A P& 7 32 A%
payments H) 5K IE - 27
Loss/(gain) on disposal of ﬁ%%% - e KRR
property, plant and ZEBER, (W)
equipment 207 (105)
Property, plant and Y2 - 2SN R E I
equipment written off 51 176
Depreciation on property, M MR RRENE
plant and equipment 63,293 57,799
Operating profit before Rt 2 EESEHAH
movements in working capital A% & ¥ A 226,190 146,938
Increase in inventories FEEm (55,833) (17,297)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted AR HR1TEZOR L, (FE0)
bank balance 2,457 (2,457)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 e WRIE N (213,899) (117,829)
Increase in prepayments, TETRIE - e R EAME
deposits and other receivables Uk I8 N (31,328) (10,506)

(Increase)/decrease in financial #&2AF{E:H ABRERH
assets at fair value through SR EE (8m) A
profit or loss . (592) 8,292

(Decrease)/increase in financial &2 FE&H AIBzEERA

liabilities at fair value through & @& & G4 ) N

profit or loss (605) 605
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE I FRIE I 166,408 27,406
Increase in deposits received, B UIES - H i fEN FRIE K

other payables and accruals & 5t 5 B 322 A 24,846 1,592
Increase/(decrease) in due to  JEfFBAE A BIFIELE N CRL

a related company 2,705 (733)
Cash generated from operations 4% & FT 1538 € 120,349 36,011
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ SR (13,947) (21,059)
Interest paid BATHE (6,561) (4,384)
Finance lease charges paid Eﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%’ﬂi i (208) (260)
Net cash generated from REEBTSIR & FHE

operating activities 99,633 10,308
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. HMERERERE)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Major non-cash transactions (b) EEHFREXRSB
(i) Included in the additions of property, plant and (i) SAREWE MR R
equipment was an amount of approximately % #9/45,729,000% 7T (=
HK$5,729,000 (2011: HK$5,091,000) which was =T — —4 : 5,091,000
transferred from deposits paid for acquisition of JL) BB -
property, plant and equipment. BRBBHIIRSTEA -
(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2011, (ii) REBEE-_ZTE——F+=
prepayments to financial institutions of A=+t—HBLtEERN"
approximately HK$1,411,000 were set off against TERNFRETSREELD
the obligations under finance leases. 1,411,000 T E B gt &

T AR 8 -

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REHNEE
The Group as lessor AEBEREBEA
The Group leases its property under operating lease AEEREEHEONLTHEBAEYE - A
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of one year. The BAIF - BARHE—BURITHHER
terms of the leases generally provide for periodic rent adjustments VEEHITH S AR 28R -

according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum R-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H K&EH
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its R HR S A S A8 = A A0 AR T B1) HA i E
tenants failing due as follows: R REBEREBOT ¢

2012

—_E—_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 38 38
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34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

34.

ﬂ*#&i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ(%)

—A=1+—H

ReEdEnRE (&)

AEEEREBAA
R-_ZE——F+-_fF=+—8 ' £&£H
RET AT R SRR RFIEAE
IRARFEE

2012

—_E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Within one year —F A 3,109 2,754
In the second to fifth year, inclusive ~SF_ZF_F(BRBHERE) 14,918 14,748
After five years HF1& 43,852 44,703
61,879 62,205

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its staff quarters, factory and office premises, office
equipment, warehouses and leasehold land for factory. Leases for
staff quarters, factory and office premises, office equipment and
warehouses except one are negotiated, and rentals are fixed, for
an average term of 1 to 10 years. Lease for leasehold land are
fixed with a term of 40 years.

Lease arrangement of one (2011: nil) warehouse has been subject
to contingent rent by reference with monthly usage throughout
the leasing periods.

The lease payments recognised as an expenses are as follows:

KEHNNRIEAEEERETELR
& IHMERRAENE BHAEHME -
ERkIBAEL ST ANEL - 8T

BE IRERBAEYE RAERE
BN (1EBLORIN) EHEmal
Y HAEAEEMESFHEIE105E -
THE + B A 15 € B F Bl R404F -

e\

—M(CE-——F B AENHERH
ﬁ“%fﬁ HEFE?WE’JtH@E)ﬂI AT

HEFRER AN - MR :

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Minimum leases payments &K ERE 4,452 3,915
Contingent rents HAME 234 =
4,686 3,915
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% ¥k M ot (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F——F+=-HA=+—H

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EBEAREIE
The Group's capital commitments in respect of purchase and RmEHETEER  A5BE@EEER
construction of property, plant and equipment at the end of the BEEYE BERREOERNEAEFE
reporting period are as follows: mR
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for BT EREHE 22,435 14,367
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BAEALTRS
(a) In addition to those related party translations and balances (a) B 1A B 75 3R 2R H 0 2B 1 BT I 5E A9
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BEANTR S REHIN  FAK
had the following transactions with its related parties SEZHEBEATETUTRS :

during the year:

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F

HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHT

Purchase of machinery and M) B 38 1 A B S A 2%

machinery parts from and BRARIHEE#ES

maintenance cost to e LN N

a related company, (Bt a£6)

Chit Shun Machinery

Limited (note (i) 7,712 5,544
Note: oz
(i) Mr. Lee has joint control in the related company. i) FEEHLBELARA LR

PRl o
(b)  The above transactions were entered with the related (b) EAXRZEREALTZRET

parties on terms mutually agreed by individual parties. In BRI E MIRTGEST - NEEE
the opinion of the directors of the Group, these related BERR REBERSHDIRE—
party transactions were conducted on normal commercial BEAEERRAEER B BB
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s TR REST ©
business.
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36.

37.

38.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

During the year, the key management personnel
compensation paid by the Group was disclosed in note 12
to the financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The following significant events have been taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2012:

(a)

On 18 March 2013, the Company proposed to declare
a final dividend of HK8.3 cents (2011: HK4.3 cents) per
ordinary share to its shareholders, as further detailed in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the Board resolution dated 10 January 2013,
the Company has adopted a Share Award Scheme. Under
the scheme, certain employees of the Group may be
awarded the Company’s ordinary shares as an incentive
for them to remain with the Group to help further the
operations and development of the Group. The principal
terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 10 January 2013 which
is available on the website of the Stock Exchange. No
shares have been awarded under the Share Award Scheme
up to the date of these financial statements.

On 18 March 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with two independent parties to establish a joint venture
(the “Joint Venture”) company in Anhui Province, the
PRC. The registered capital of the Joint Venture is
RMB50,000,000, of which the Group will hold 60% equity
interest of the Joint Venture by way of a cash contribution
of RMB30,000,000. The details of the Joint Venture are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March
2013 which is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2013.

36.

37.

38.

B 75 s Rk BT o (48

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —F ——F+=-H=

—H

BEALRS (&)

(©)

FR AKEECNEZEEEAER
& Th R AR A M IS IR M R 123

o

HEH®ZRSEHE
R-ZE——F+_A=+—HEBEEN
EEEHEFHWOT

(a)

(b)

R-_ZTE—=F=ZA+NHB" 'K
NAEZERFRS BN (=ZF
——F  FRA3IBU) 2 KHPE
BRES  EFBHRPBEHRE
MzE13 o

RE-_FT-—=F—A1THENES
BREBE  ARACDEMA—ER
0 BB E - RIBZFTE > AK
EETREEAIEERBAARE
B ABRBRELSAEE 2
BRERBERMB N - in RE
AENERERERARRR =
E—=F—A+THNQM ZAQ
MARBRXARLEE - BEA
Mgk A WERBRND R
By At 8 REVEAA AL

R-ZE—=F=ZA+NHB &E&E
RN VA NS - W
NEFBEZRERLEERA
([EERT] - &E QAR EM
& KA AR #50,000,000T © &
FALEEBUABESHEARKE
30,000,000t A RIFHEERQ
AIHI60%HEzs - B E A RIS
ERARB_ZT—=F=ZA+AN
HE A - 522 0] R B A P A
EE o

#t O B 3R &R
AHBBREREN=—_E—=F=A+/\H
EEES O ELRRETIE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
05 2

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENFE —TTNF —F-TF —T——F ZB-Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FE T FET FET FETT
RESULTS E
Turnover =% 685,134 633,832 913,344 1,191,698 1,568,958
Profit before tax B A5 A1 Y5 A 14,527 50,039 73,772 82,300 157,230
Income tax expense FTiS T & (5,892) (12,239) (17,639) (19,480) (31,336)
Profit for the year F A ) 8,635 37,800 56,133 62,820 125,894
Attributable to AR AR
— Equity holders of the —RAAEEREA
Company 8,635 37,800 56,133 62,820 125,894
— Minority interests —LEEERFAA - = = = -
8,635 37,800 56,133 62,820 125,894

As at 31 December

BR+=B=+—8
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—TEN\F ZFTTINF ZT-TF T —F ZB-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FE T FET FETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER AR
Total assets 48R B 710,285 763,214 932,048 1,229,670 1,596,677
Total liabilities BEE (170,645) (207,530) (328,610) (505,214) (780,903)
Net assets FEE 539,640 555,684 603,438 724,456 815,774
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited \
ERBERERBRAF

Room 1210, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Tel E5E: (852) 2414 0456
Fax {8E: (852) 2412 1743
website 4841F : www.kashui.com
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